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November 5, 1998

Mr. Michael J. Thibodeaux, President
and Members of the Board

Caddo Partsh School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Repori of the Caddo Parish School Board (School Board)
for the year ended June 30, 1998, is submitted herewith. This report has been prepared by
Finance Department personnel! following the guidclines recommended by the Association of
School Business Officials International and the Government Finance Officers Association of
the United States and Canada.

A. Management Responsibility

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completencss and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the School Board. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and are reported 1n
a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the various
funds and account groups of the School Board. All disclosures necessary Lo enable the reader
to gain an understanding of the School Board's financtal activities have been included.

B. CAFR
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) consists of three parts:

(1) The Introductory Section. This section includes a lctter of transmuttal, information on
financial reporting achicvements, the School Board's organizational chart, recognition of the
elected officials of the School Board and a list of sclected administrative officials.

(2) The Financial Section. The School Board's financial statements and schedules are
presented in accordance with the financial reporting pyramid set forth by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. The School Board's complete financial operations are depicted
in the general-purpose financial statements and thus present an overview of the School Board's

operations. Individual fund and account group statements and schedules are also presented
along with the combining statcments.

i
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Mr. Michael J. Thibodeaux, President
and Members of the Board

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

B. CAFR (Continued)

Combining statements are presented when a School Board has more than one fund of a given fund type. Various
statements are also used to demonstrate finance related legal and contractual compliance, present other information
decemed useful, and provide details of data summarized in the financial statements.

(3) The Statistical Section. Included in this section are a number of tables of unaudited data depicting the financial
history, demographics and other miscellaneous information of the Caddo Parish School Board for the past ten years.

The School Board is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit
Act Amendments of 1996 and U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Loca

Governments, end Non-Profit QOrganizations. Information related to this single audit, includes the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards, findings and recommendations, if applicable, and auditors’ reports on internal
control and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The single audit report is issued separately from this
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The School Board provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through 12. These
include regular and enriched academic education, special education for handicapped youngsters, occupational
education, and many individualized programs such as specialized instruction for disadvantaged students and thosc
with limited English proficiency. These basic programs are supplemented by a wide variety of offerings in the fine
arts and athletics.

C. Reporting Entity

The report includes all entitics or organizations that are required to be included in the School Board's reporting entity.
The basic criteria for determining whether a governmental department, agency, institution, commission, public
authority, or other governmental organization should be included in a governmental unit's reporting entity is financial
accountability. Financial accountability includes the appointment of a voting majority of the organization's governing
body and either the ability of the primary government to impose its will on the organization or if there is a financial
benefit/burden relationship. In addition, an organization which is fiscally dependent on the primary government
should be included 1 its reporting entity.

The financial statements present the Caddo Parish School Board (the primary government). Based on the criteria
there are no coraponent vunits included in the School Board's reporting entity.

Caddo-Shreveport Sales and Use Tax Comimission - The Commission is an independent agency responsible for the

collection, enforcement, and administration of sales and use taxes levied by the School Board and the City of
Shreveport. The Commission is considered a separate reporting entity and issues financial statements separate from
those of the School Board. The School Board does not retain an ongoing financial interest or responsibility in its
operations. The Commission is not considered a component unit of the School Board and its operations are not
included in the accompanying financial statements.

1



Mr. Michael J. Thibodeaux, President
and Mcmbers of the Board

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

D. FEconomic Condition and Outlook

Building activity and the resulting businesses have created 15,000 jobs in the Shreveport metropolitan area since
1996. Another 7,000 jobs are expected to be added within the next {wo years if this economic boom continucs.
The additional jobs will come from a variety of industrics, making the Shreveport arca the most diversified section
of l.ouisiana according to reports by 1LL.SU economists. The economy is expected to grow by 2 percent in cach of
the next two years. Most growth will come from the services industry, retail and wholesale trade, construction and
manufacturing,

Casinos account for 5,600 dircct jobs in the services sector and have generated development of hotels, restaurants,
and other entertainment facilities which employ nearly twice that number. A fifth river boat plans to locate in
Shreveport and could employ 2,000.

The health care industry is rapidly growing. Willis Knighton Pierremont Medical Center is nearing completion in
Southeast Shreveport and several assisted living complexes are planned or under construction.

The telecommunication industry is another major player in local growth. A Ticketmaster call center with 300
gmployees recently opened and Century Tel is planning a move to larger offices to handle a projected 400 new jobs
in the next four years. Hello World, headquartered in ‘Texas, is planning a local office to initially employ 40 pcoplc
in the prepaid communications industry.

In the past year, dozens of restaurants and retail stores have opened and more are planned. Among thosc are
International Housc of Pancakes (three locations), Tony Romas Restaurant, Copelands, Petco Pet Supplies, Party
City, Ivan Smith Furniture, Office Depot, and Office Max. Additional auto dealers are locating in the auto mall
and scveral new Eckerds, Rite Aid, and Walgreens' drug stores are under construction.

A very important element of Louisiana School Systems

is the student population. The student count is directly Student Popu]aﬂon
linked to public education support received by the 60000 - o L o
Caddo Parish School Board from the State of Louisiana.

. . . . . 50000
I'he State of Louisiana’s intent is to fund an average of
two-thirds of the cost of ¢ducation for public children, 40000
cxcluding capital outlay and debt service. Economically 30000
poorer school systems receive a greater percentage than 20000
two-thirds, while richer school systems receive less than 5400
two-thirds funding. The student population chart at the
right depicts the change in enrollment during the past
five years in Caddo Parish,

06-97 §7-88

Number of Studernits
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Mr. Michael J. Thibodeaux, President :
and Members of the Board

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

E. Major Initiatives
For the Year

Major plant projects completed or begun by the school system in 1997-1998 were:
- Electrical upgrades at 21 schools
- Asbestos Abatement at Captain Shreve, Phase 1l
- Roofing at Magnet High, Hillsdale, Sunset Acres, North Highlands, and Northwood
- Paving at Byrd High School
- Two classrooms at Creswell Elementary
- Huntington High School mock courtroom
- Accesstbility at Caddo Career Center
- Air conditioned cafeterias at Summerfield, Walnut Hill, and Westwood
- Replaced boilers at Woodlawn
- Replace gymnasium flooring at Midway and Qil City
- Replacement of 11 school buses

Of fur

While acknowledging that Caddo has successful schools, the public 1s demanding that student leaming improve. The
quality of education, higher graduation standards, and accountability measures are expected. The Louisiana
Legislature has proposed an Accountability Plan intended to drive fundamental changes in classroom teaching by
helping schools and communities focus on improved student achievement. Each school will be expected to show
academic growth compared to itself.

Funding for education is an important part of the solution. State lawmakers must continue to make additional funding
for public education a high priority. Public support must continue and school system administrators must provide
cffective leadership for wisest use of all available resources.

F. Internal Control

Management of the School Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control designed to ensure
that the assets of the School Board are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting
data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Internal control is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed

the benefits hikely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgements by
manageimnent.

We believe that the School Board's accounting controls provide reasonable assurance that errors or irregularities to
the financial statements are prevented or would be detected within a timely penod by employees in the nornmal course
of performing their assigned functions.

As a recipient of Federal, state and local financial assistance, the School Board also is responsible for ensuring that
adequate imnternal control 1s 1n place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those
programs. This internal control 1s subject to periodic evaluation by management and the internal audit staff,

1v



Mr. Michael J. Thibodeaux, President :
and Members of the Board

Caddo Parish School Board

Shreveport, LLouisiana

¥. Internal Control (Continued)

As a part of the School Board's single audit, described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal
control, including that portion related to federal awards programs, as well as to determine that the School Board has
complied with applicable laws and regulations. The results of the School Board's single audit for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1998 provided no instances of material weaknesses in internal control or significant violations of applicable
laws and regulations,

G. Budgetary Controls

The School Board maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the School Board. Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds, debt
service fund and the capital projects fund, are included in the annual appropriated budget. School Board policy
prescribes that the level of budgetary control is at the functional level for the general fund, debt service fund and
capital projects fund and at the fund level for the special revenue funds. Legal requirements provide that expenditures
may not exceed appropriations in excess of five percent of the budgeted expenditures at the fund level,

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the School Board
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

H. Financial Condition
eneral Educationa nctions

General educational activities which are accounted for in the general fund are supported principally by local taxes
and state entitlements. Direct federal aid is nominal in the general fund, but substantial sums are made available to
the Louisiana Department of Education which are subsequently distributed to local entities, General fund revenues
are as follows:

Increase
Percent (Decrease)
Source Amount of Total From 1997
Local $ 95,170,774 41.94 % 19,172,873
State 1300,874,542 57.67 7,053,934
Federal 878.254 0.39 ( 646.366)

$226.923.570 100.00 $ 25,580,441

The general fund revenues increase of $25,580,441 from the prior year amount of $201,343,129 was primarily due
to the following:
« Local sources increased due to a $1,795,378 increase in sales tax revenues and a $17,494,193 increase in
ad valorem taxes. The increase in ad valorem taxes is mainly due to the levy of an additional 31.57 mils
In the current year.
» State revenues increased $7,053,934 due primarily to increases in minimum foundation payments and state
pay supplements.
« Federal sources decreased due to decrease in federal grant monies received.



Mr. Michael J. Thibodeaux, President
and Members of the Board
Caddo Parish School Board

Shreveport, Louisiana
H. Financial Condition (Continued)

General educational expenditures by function were as follows:

Percent Increase
Item Amount of Total From 1997
Instruction $161,953,853 73.10 $14,090,147
General administration 2,890,939 1.30 369,854
School administration 15,389,514 6.95 1,915,178
Business services 2,522,983 1.14 234,776
Plant services 23,696,424 10.70 1,577,693
Student transportation services 12,255,677 5.53 681,736
Central services 2,825,728 1.27 241,554
Community service program 12.214 0.01 1,707

$221,547.332 100.00 $19.112,645

General fund expenditures increased $19,112,645 from the prior year amount of $202,434,687. This increase was
primarily due to the following:

« Teacher and employee salaries increased approximately $16,857,000. Related benefits also increased
approximately $2,560,000,

The unreserved fund balance in the general fund was maintained at an adequate level. The unreserved fund balance,
which includes a designation for contingencies of $5,762,210 and a designation for equipment replacement of
$373,319 at June 30, 1998, increased from $14,528,739 to $19,492,206 or 34.2%. This unreserved fund balance

represents 8.56% of 1997-1998 general fund expenditures,
Special Revenue Activities

Special revenue fund revenues of $41,139,819, including $9,309,036 of state sources, $2,790,108 of local sources,
and $29,040,675 of federal sources, were restricted for use in fifteen separate activities. The Child Nutrition Program
fund accounts for $16,867,599 of these revenues. The School Lunch Program 1s administered by this fund. The
majority of the remaining revenues, $12,006,371, funded the Title I program for educationally deprived students.
The remainder was designed primarily to: (1) provide instructional and related services to handicapped children and
(2) provide extended day remedial instruction including books, tapes and audiovisual hardware and software for
general student population.

Vi




Mr. Michael J. Thibodeaux, President \
and Members of the Board

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

H. Financial Condition (Continued)

Special Revenue Activities (Continued)

Special revenue funds expenditures by function were:

Increasc

Percent (Decrease)

Item Amount of Total From 1997
Instruction $22,504,584 53.44 $ 4,688,419
General administration 303,822 0.72 ( 115,655)
School administration 192,581 0.46 31,377
Business services 47,961 0.11 22,413
Plant services 421,152 1.00 327,680
Student transportation services 70,296 0.17 16,134
Food services 17,801,714 42.28 559,294
Community service programs 764.769 1.82 158,622
$42.106.879 100.00 $ S5,688284

The special revenue fund expenditures increase of $5,688,284 over the prior year amount of $36,418,595 is mainly

due to an increase in support from the state and federal governments for the various programs accounted for as special
revenue funds.

ebt ' ctiviti
The changes in general long-term obligations are as follows:

July 1, 1997 Additions Payments June 30, 1998

Bonds payable $26,790,000 $ - $2,705,000  $24,085,000
Claims and judgments payable 568,415 - 214,532 353,883
Compensated absences payable 13,612,585 302,825 2,958,312 13,957,098

$40.971.000 $3.302,825 $5.877,844  $38.395,981

Capital Project Activities

All major capital improvements are accounted for in the capital projects fund. During the year ended June 30, 1998,
capital expenditures were made in the amount of $7,261,864. The majority of these funds were expended on the
renovation and expansion of existing schools. These projects were primarily funded with an allocation of property

taxes in the amount of $10,233,471, interest earnings on idle funds in the amount of $142,1064, state sources of
$369,934 and funds carricd over from prior years.

Vil




Mr. Michael J. Thibodeaux, President )
and Members of the Board

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

H. Financial Condition (Continued)

Proprietary Activities

The School Board maintains an internal service fund to account for medical and dental self-insurance coverage. The
School Board elected to terminate the self-insurance program in April 1997, All claims occurring after April 1, 1997
were filed under a fully insured plan. The current year activity consisted mainly of collecting the final premiums and
paying all run-off claims due. Accordingly, operating revenues to the fund decreased from $16,761,934 in 1997 to

$759,131 in 1998, a decrease of $16,002,803. Medical claims decreased from $17,707,366 in 1997 to $284,537 in
1998 a decrease of $17,422,829,

The internal service fund has a deficit retained earnings of $46,930 as of June 30, 1998. The deficit resulted primarily
from the actual cost of claims exceeding the estimated costs of claims. Since premiums were based on this estimated
claims, premium revenues collected were not sufficient to cover actual claims. Management intends to transfer funds
from the general fund to the internal service fund in the next fiscal year to cover this deficit.

Nonexpen 1viti

The Caddo Educational Excellence fund is a nonexpendable trust fund. The fund is used to account for the trust
principal investraent earnings and boarding fees from area casinos as provided for in Louisiana Revised Statute LSA-
R.S. 17:408.1, Revenues consisted of $1,161,682 of boarding fees and $131,106 of interest earnings. The operating
transfer out of $148,020 was used for educational enhancement.

Fiduci: 1vit]

The school activity funds comprise approximately one-half of the School Board's agency fund activities. These funds
are held by the individual schools of the School Board to support school activities such as athletics and other student
organizations. All school activity funds are audited periodically by the internal audit staff.

Vill



Mr. Michacl J. Thibodeaux, President .
and Members of the Board

Caddo Parish School Board

Shreveport, 1.ouisiana

H. Financial Condition (Continued)

The following charts provides an analysis of the sources of revenues and the expenditures by function tor the ycar
ended June 30, 1998:

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Revenue Sources Expenditures by Function
Percentage of Total Revenues Percentage of Total Expenditures

Debt Gorvice

Capited Outiay

Child Nutrition

instructional Support

Cther Support Services

I. Cash Management

The School Board has an aggressive cash management program which consists of expediting the receipt of revenuces
and prudently investing available cash in obligations collateralized by instruments issued by the United States
Government or federal government agencies created by an act of Congress or insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. The total amount of interest earned was $3,110,974 for the year ended June 30, 1998, This
was distributed as follows:

General fund $2,282,226

Special revenue funds
Child Nutrition Program 444,278
Other funds 6,606
Debt service fund 96,463
Capital projects fund 142,164
Internal service fund 8,131
Nonexpendable trust 131,106
$3.110,974

1X




Mr. Michael J. Thibodeaux, President
and Members of the Board

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, 1.ouisiana

J. Debt Administration

‘The ratio of nct bonded debt to assessed valuation and the amount of bonded debt per capita are uscful indicators
of the School Board’s debt position. Net bonded debt represents total bonded debt of $24,085,000 less fund equity
in the debt service fund of $2,483,213. This data as of June 30, 1998 is as follows:

Bonded Debt

Ratio of Debt 400
to Assessed  Debt per 359
Amount Value Capita 300 —
250 %5
Net dircet general 200 {5
obligation bonded 150
debt $21,601,787 2.09% $88 122“'

The School Board maintained an A+ bond rating from Standard

and Poor's Corporation and an A1 bond rating from Moody's. June 84 June 85 June 86 June 97 June 98

| 74 Bond Debt Permitted (Millions)
The bonded debt chart compares the maximum amount of E Net Bonded Debt Outstanding (Millions)

indebtedness allowed by Louisiana Statutes and the actual

amount of net indebtedness outstanding at year-end for the past

five fiscal ycars. State statute defincs maximum indebtedness allowed as thirty-five percent of the assessed value
of property in Caddo Parish.

K. Risk Management

The School Board maintains a combination of self-insurance and stop-10ss coverage (0 managc its risk of loss from
property damage, theft and claims against employees. In addition, the School Board was partially self-insured for
group hospitalization, dental, disability and life insurance prior to April 1, 1997. A list of insurance in force is
included in Tablc 14, The fund balance of the general fund includes $5,762,210 designatcd for contingencics
established in anticipation of possible losses from lawsuits and self-insurance liability including self-insurance run-

off claims,

I.. Awards

The Government I'inance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achiecvement for Excellence in Financial Reporting and the
Association of School Business Officials International (ASBO) awarded a Certificate of
I'xcellence in IMinancial Reporting to the School Board for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Repoit for every fiscal year since the year ended June 30, 1988. To be awarded
these certificates, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual I“inancial Report, whose contents conform {o program standards.
Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. These
certificates are valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to conform to the
certificate requirements, and we are submitting it to both GFOA and ASBO.




Mr. Michael J. Thibodeaux, President
and Members of the Board

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

M. Independent and Internal Audits

The report of our independent certificd public accountants, Allen, Green & Company, LLP, follows as an integral
component of this report. Their audit of the general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual
fund and account group statements and schedules was performed in accordance with gencrally accepted auditing
standards and, accordingly, included a review of the School Board's system of budgetary and accounting controls.

In addition to the accounting control systems and the use of independent auditors, the School Board maintains a staff
of internal auditors who conduct internal audits as well as special audits of the operations of the School Board.

N. Acknowledgments

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of the
entire staff of the Finance Department and the Internal Auditing Department. We want to express our appreciation
to them for their assistance. We also thank the members of the School Board for their interest and support in
planning and conducting the financial operations of the school system in a responsible and progressive manner.
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Certificate ot

Achievement

for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Caddo Parish School Board,
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Ior its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report

for the Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 1997

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
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systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.
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This Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting is presented to

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

‘ For its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)
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ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

GREEN & CO-Q P. 0. Box 6075 Ernest L. Allen, CPA
Monreoe, LA 71211-6075 (A Professional
(( : P A) - 2414 Ferrand Street 2285 Green Acras Office Park Accounting Comp.)
Monroe, LA 71201 G.0O.P. Building 1N, Suite 400 -
Telephone: {318) 388-4422 Bossier cgry. LA 71111 Tim Green, CPA
The CPA, Facsimile: (318) 388-4664 Telephone: (318) 741-D205
Nover Underestimale The Value* Website: allengreencpa.com Facsimile: (318) 741-0207 Margie Williamson, CPA

Independent Auditors’ Report

Board Mcmbers
Caddo Parish School Board

Shreveport, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund
and account group statements and schedules of Caddo Parish School Board, Shreveport, Louisiana, as of and for
the year ended June 30, 1998, as listed in the table of contents. These gencral-purpose financial statements and the
combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules are the responsibility of the Caddo
Parish School Board's management. Our responsibility 1s 1o express an opinion on these general-purpose financial
statements and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally aceepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to
financial audits containcd in Government Auditing Standards, issucd by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Thosc standards require that we plan and perform the audit {0 oblain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statementis are free of matcerial misstatement. An audit mcludes examining, on a tcst basis, cvidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statcments. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as ecvaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We belicve that our audit provides a recasonable basis for our opinton.

In our optnion, the gencral-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group
statecments and schedules referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Caddo Parish School Board as of June 30, 1998, and the results of its operations and cash flows for
the proprictary fund and the nonexpendable trust fund for the year then ended in conformity with gencerally accepted
accounting principles.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also i1ssucd, under scparate cover, our report dated
Scptember 23, 1998 on our consideration of the Caddo Parish School Board's mtemal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-purposc financial statements and the
combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules of Caddo Parish School Board,
Shreveport, Louisiana, taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections listed in the table of contents arc
presented for purposes of additional analysis and arc not a required part of the general-purpose {inancial statecments
and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules of Caddo Parish School Board,
Shreveport, Louvisiana. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the gencral-purposc financial statements, combining and individual fund and account group statements and

schedules and, accordingly, we express no opinion on i,

Allen. hreon # Contgony, (47

ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP

Monrog, 1.ouisiana
Scptember 23, 1998

Member: Amenican Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Society of Lowisiana Certificd Public Accountants and
Anenican Institute of Certified Public Accountants Dhvision for CPA Firms
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups
June 30, 1998

*'k**t******ﬁ***i****i**GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS***************** it e i e

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 29,574 976 $ 7,785178 § 2541312 % 5,224 801
Investments 336,822 0 0 0
Receivables 4,958,625 5,225,460 0 329
Interfund receivable 4,662,408 0 0 0
Inventory 463,979 182,430 0 0
Land, buildings and equipment 0 0 0 0
Other debits
Amount available in debt service fund 0 O 0 0
Amount to be provided for payment of general
long-term debt 0 0 0 0

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS $ 39,896810 $ 13,193,068 $ 25641312 % 5,225 130



e

Statement A

PROPRIETARY  FIDUCIARY  ********ACCOUNT GROUPS**+#ssss

FUNDS - FUNDS- GENERAL GENERAL TOTAL
INTERNAL TRUST AND FIXED LONG-TERM (MEMORANDUM
SERVICE ___AGENCY ASSETS DEBT ONLY]}

$ 13,070 § 3,169,849 § 0% C% 48,309,186
0 2,639,544 0 0 2,876,366
0 59,163 0 0 10,243,577
0 0 0 0 4,662,408
0 0 0 0 646,409
0 0 214,033,728 0 214,033,728
0 0 0 2,483,213 2,483,213
0 0 0 35,812,768 35,012,768

$ 13,070 $ 5868556 § 214033728 $ 38,395,981 § 319,267,655

(CONTINUED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Balance Sheet - All Fund Types and Account Groups
June 30, 1998

*#***************i****iGDVE RHMENTAL FUN DS**** e ok e o e e e e e ol e e o e e ok e

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS
Liabilities:
Accounts, salaries and other payables $ 19,038,748 § 835,778 $ 58,099 $ 1,391,175
Interfund payable 0 4,602,408 0 0
Deposits due others 0 0 0 0
Deferred revenues 135,165 436,662 0 200,000
Bonds payable O 0 0 0
Claims and judgements payable 282,500 0 0 0
Compensated absences payable . 1,048,151 0 0 0
Total Liabilities $ 20,504.604 $ 5874848 $ 58,090 $ 1,591,175
Equity and other credits
Investment in general fixed assets $ 0% 0% 0% 0
Retained earnings {deficit) 0 0 0 0
Fund Balances:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances 68,5635 212,930 0 0
Inventory 463,979 182,430 0 0
Debt service 0 0 2,483,213 0
Instructionzl enhancement 0 0 0 0
Unreserved for:
Designated for contingencies 5,762,210 1,477,704 0 0
Designated for equipment replacement 373,319 3,623,836 0 0
Undesignated fund balance i 12,824,163 1,821,320 0 3,633,855
Total Equity and Other Credits $ 19,462 206 $ 7,318,220 2483213 § 3,633,955
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND
OTHER CREDITS $ 39996810 $ 13,193,068 $ 2,541,312 $ 5225130

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Statement A

PROPRIETARY  FIDUCIARY  *******ACCOUNT GROUPS*+*+++

FUNDS - FUNDS- GENERAL GENERAL TOTAL
INTERNAL TRUST AND FIXED LONG-TERM (MEMORANDUM
SERVICE ___ AGENCY ASSETS DEBT ONLY)

$ 0 $ 41,972 $ 0% 0% 21,365,772
60,000 0 0 0 4,662,408

0 2,875,582 0 0 2,875,582

0 0 0 0 771,827

0 0 0 24,085,000 24,085,000

0 0 0 353,883 636,383

0 _ 0 0 13,957,098 15,005,289

$ 60,000 $ 2.917,554 $ 0$ 38395081 $ 69,402,261
$ 0 $ 0$ 214,033,728 $ 0 214,033,728
(46,930) 0 0 0 (46,030)

0 0 0 0 281,465

0 0 0 0 646,409

0 0 0 0 2,483,213

0 2,951,002 0 0 2,951,002

0 0 0 0 7,239,914

0 0 0 0 3,897,155

0 0 0 0 18,379,438

$ (46,930) $ 2951002 $ 214,033,728 $ 0$ 249865394

$ 13,070 $ 5868556 $ 214033728 $  38,395981 $ 319,267,655
(CONCLUDED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances{Deficit)- All Governmental Fund Types

For the Year Ended June 30, 1988 Statement B
***********************GOVERNMENTAL FU NDS*iliil*ti*liiiiﬁﬁiﬁ*ii TDTAL
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL. (MEMORANDUM
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ~___ONLY)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem 3 47,388,114 $ 0% 54905533 % 10,233471 § 63,117,118
Sales and use 44,192,340 0 0 0 44,192,340
Investment income 2,282 226 450,884 08 463 142,164 2,971,737
Food services 0 2,316,329 0 0 2,319,329
Other 1,308,094 19,895 0 18,086 1,346,075
State sources:
Equalization 126,165,627 5,602,706 0 0 131,768,333
Other 4,708,915 3,706,330 0 369,934 8,785.179
Federal sources 878,254 29040675 0 0 29.918,929
Total revenues $ 226023570 $ 41,139819 % 5591996 $§ 10,763655 $ 284,419,040
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regular programs $ 97336593 $ 4580958 § 0% 0 % 101,926,551
Special programs 35,359,184 300,751 0 0 35,659,935
Other instruction 12,377,508 13,445,071 0 0 25,822,579
Support services:
Student services 8,114,614 1,444,151 0 0 9,558,765
Instructional staff support 8,765,954 2,724,653 0 0 11,490,607
General administration 2,890,939 303,822 210,000 454 780 3,859,641
Schoo! administration 15,389,514 192,581 0 0 15,582,095
Business semvices 2,522,983 47,961 0 0 2,570,944
Plant services 23,696,424 421,162 0 0 24,117,576
Student transportation services 12,255,677 70,296 0 0 12,325,973
Central services 2,825,728 0 0 0 2,825,728
Food services 0 17,801,714 0 0 17,801,714
Community service programs 12,214 764,769 0 0 776,983
Capital outlay | 0 0 0 7,261,864 7,261,864
Debt service: -
Principal retirement 0 0 2,705,000 0 2,705,000
Interest and bank charges 0 3 0 1,282,362 0 1,282,362
Total expenditures S 221547332 $ 42106879 % 42072362 % 7716644 © 275578217
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 5,376,238 § (967.060) $ 1384634 % 3047011 $ 8,840,823
{CONTINVDED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances{Deficit)- All Governmental Fund Types

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Statement B
**t**i*i*il*i*tl*t**i*tGDVERNMENTAL FUNDS**************E******* TOTAL
SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL (MEMORANDUM
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ONLY)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in $ 151,261 $ 125,000 § 0% 1,000,000 § 1,276,261
Operating transfers out (1,125,000) (3,241) 0 0 (1,128,241)
Proceeds from the sale of
fixed assets 44 518 3,208 0 262,000 309,726
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (929,221} $ 124967 $ 0% 1,262,000 % 457,746
EXCESS {(Deficiency) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 4447017 $ (842,083) $ 1,384634 % 4,309,011 % 9,298,669
FUND BALANCES (Deficit) AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR 15,045,189 8,160,313 1,098,679 (675,056) 23,629,025

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR  $ 19492206 $ 7318220 % 2483213 % 3633955 3 32927 694

(CONCLUDED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual - All Governmental Funds - General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 1988

REVENUES
Local sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem
Sales and use
Investment income
Other
Slate sources:
Equalization
Other
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
Instruction

Support services:
General administration
School adminisiration
Business services
Plant services
Student transportation services
Central services
Community service programs

Total expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND

OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

Statement C

VARIANCE

FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL  (UNFAVORABLE}
47,723,400 $ 47,388,114 $ (335,286)
43,550,000 44,192,340 642,340
2,000,000 2,282,226 282,226
1,357,000 1,308,094 (48,9086)
126,165,603 126,165,627 24
4,715,360 4,708,915 (6,445)
738,000 878,254 140,254
226,249,363 226.923,570 $ 674,207
166,350,617 161,953,853 $ 4,396,764
3,200,680 2,890,939 309,741
15,442,700 15,389,514 53,186
2,580,050 2,522,983 57,067
25,336,300 23,696,424 1,639,876
12,144,700 12,255,677 (110,977)
2,903,450 2,825,728 77,722
0 12,214 (12,214)
227958497 $ 221547332 % 6,411,165
(1,708,134) $ 5376,238 $ 7,085,372
148,020 $ 151,261 $ 3,241
0 (1,125,000) (1,125,000)
36,000 44,518 8,518
184,020 $ (929.221) $ (1,113,241)

(1,5625,114) $

15,045,189

4,447,017 $ 5,972,131

15,045,189

0

$ 13,520,075 $ 19,482,206 % 5,972,131

(CONTINUED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual - Al Governmental Funds - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30,1998 Statement C
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Investment income $ 403,000 $ 450,884 $ 47,884
Food services 2,080,000 2,319,329 229,329
Other 0 19,895 19 895
State sources:
Equalization 5,422,974 5,602,706 179,732
Other 3,870,630 3,706,330 (164,300)
Federal sources 28,012,151 29,040 675 1,028,624
Total revenues $ 30,798.755 $ 41,139819 § 1,341,064
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction $ 24091911 $ 22504584 $ 1,587,327
Support services:
General administration 387,986 303,822 84,164
School administration 299,231 192,681 106,650
Business services 33,012 47,961 (14,949)
Plant services 299,499 421,152 (121,653)
Student transportation services 105,058 70,296 34,762
Food services 17,097,000 17,801,714 (704,714)
Community service programs 0 764,769 (764,769)
Tolal expenditures $ 42313697 $ 42106879 % 206,818
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (2,514,942) $ (967,060) $ 1,647,882
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 3 860,000 $ 125,000 § (735,000)
Operating transiers out 0 (3,241) (3.241)
Other sources-proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 0__ 3,208 ) 3,208
Total other financing sources {(uses) $ 860,000 $ 124 967 § (735,033)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ (1,654,042) § (842,003) $ 812,849
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 8,160,313 8,160,313 0

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

$ 6,505,371 _$ 7,318.220 % 812,849

(CONTINUED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual - All Governmental Funds - Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Statement C
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES |
Local sources:
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 5,619,300 § 5,495,633 $ (123,767)
Investment income 0 06,463 96,463
Total revenues $ 5619300 % 5591996 $ (27,304)
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Support services:

General administration $ 201,889 § 210,000 $ (8,111)

Debt service:

Principal retirement 2,705,000 2,705,000 0

Interest and bank charges 1,292 362 1,202,362 O

Total expenditures 3 4,199,251 $ 4,207 362 $ (8.111)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES $ 1,420,049 & 1,384,634 $ {35,415)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,098,579 _ 1,098,579 0
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 2,618,628 $ 2483213 $ (35,4195)

(CONTINUED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget (Non-GAAP Basis) and Actual - All Governmental Funds - Capital Projects Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Statement C

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources;
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 10,318,800 $ 10,233,471 % {85,329)
Investment income 40,000 142,164 102,164
Other 0 18,086 18,086
State sources:

Other 372,100 369,934 (2,166)

Total revenues $ 10,730,800 $ 10,763,655 $ 32,755
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Supponr services:

General administration $ 454 400 $ 454,780 $ (380)

Capital outlay 7.573.5600 6,978,350 595 150

Total expenditures $ 8,027,900 $ 7433130 % 594 770
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES $ 2,703,000 % 3,330,625 $ 627,525
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in $ 1,150,000 % 1,000,000 $ (150,000)

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 0 262,000 262,000

Total other financing sources {Uses) $ 1,160,000 $ 1,262,000 112,000

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND

OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) $ 3,853,000 % 4592525 % 739 5625
FUND BALANCES AT BEG!NNING OF YEAR 231,540 354 583 123,043
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 4,084,540 $ 4,947,108 $ 862,568

(CONCLUDED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings {Deficit)/Fund Balance -
All Proprietary Fund Types and Nonexpendable Trust Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Statement D
PROPRIETARY
FUND - FIDUCIARY FUND - TOTAL
INTERNAL NONEXPENDABLE (MEMORANDUM
SERVICE TRUST ONLY)
OPERATING REVENUE
Employer contributions $ 751,000 § 0 % 751,000
Fees 0 1,161,682 1,161,682
Investment income 8,131 131,106 139,237
Total operating revenues $ 759,131 $ 1,292,788 % 2.051,919
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration $ 23175 $ 132 % 23 307
Claims 284 537 0 284 537
Total operating expenses $ 307,712 $ 132 % 307,844
Operating income (loss) $ 451,419 $ 1,292,656 % 1,744,075
CPERATING TRANSFERS FROM/(TO) OTHER FUNDS
Operating Transfers frem/{to) other funds $ 0 $ (148,020) $ (148,020)
Net Income {loss) $ 451 419 $ 1,144 636 $% 1,696,065
RETAINED EARNINGS (Deficit)/FUND BALANCE,
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR (498.349) 1,806,366 1,308,017
RETAINED EARNINGS (Deficit)/fF UND BALANCE,
AT END OF YEAR 46 930 2,951,002 2.904 072

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Combined Statement of Cash Flows

All Proprietary Fund Types and Nonexpendable Trust Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (i0ss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to net cash provided {(used) for operating
activities
(Increase) decrease in receivable
(Increase) decrease in interfund payable
Increase (decrease) in payable

Net cash provided (used) for
operating aclivities

CASH FLOW FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Transfers out

Net cash provided (used) for noncapital
financing activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF YEAR

Statement E
PROPRIETARY
FUND - FIDUCIARY FUND - TOTAL
INTERNAL NONEXPENDABLE (MEMORANDUM
SERVICE TRUST ONLY)
$ 451,419 $ 1,282.656 $ 1,744,075
0 (17,228) (17,228)
60,000 D 60,000
(1,758,416) 0 {1,758,416)
$ (1,2465.997) $ 1275428 $ 28 431
$ 0 % (148.020) $ (148,020)
Y 0 % {148,020) $ {148.020)
$ 0 % (5660,800) $ (560,900)
$ 0 % (5660,900) § (560,900)
$ (1,246,997) $ 566,508 $ {680,489)
1.260,067 331 1,260,398

$ 13,070 $ 566 838 $ 579,909

Total cash per Statement A includes $2,603,010 of agency funds which are not included in the cash
and cash equivalents at end of year above for the Fiduciary Fund - Nonexpendable Trust column.

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying financial statcments of the Caddo Parish School Board have been prepared in
conformity with generally aceepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied 1o governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 1s the aceepied standard-sctting body for establishing
governmenial accounting and financial reporiing principles.

B. REPORTING ENTITY

The Caddo Parish School Board was created by Louisiana Revised Statute (ILSA-R.S.) 17:51 1o provide
public education for the children within Caddo Parish. The School Board 1s authorized by 1.SA-R.S. 17:81
to cstablish policies and rcgulations for its own government consistent with the Jaws of the state of
Lowistana and thc regulations of the Louisiana Board of Elementary and Scecondary Education. The
School Board 1s comprised of twelve members who are clecled from twelve districts for terms of four
ycars.

The School Board opcrates scventy-five schools within the parish with a total enrollment of 48,628
students. In conjunction with the regular educational programs, some of these schools offer special
cducation and/or adull cducation programs. In addition, the School Board provides transportation and
school food scrvices for the students.

GASB Statement 14 cstablishes criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component
units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statement, the School
Board 1s considered a primary government, since it ts a special purpose government that has a scparately
clected governing body, 1s legally scparale, and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments.
As uscd in GASB Statement 14, fiscally independent means that the School Board may, without the
approval or consent of another governmental entify, determine or modily Hs own budget, levy its own
taxes or sci rates or charges, and 1ssue bonded debt. The School Board also has no component units,
defincd by GASB Statcment 14 as other Icgally scparatle organizations for which the clected School Board
members arc financially accountable. There are no other primary governments with which the School
Board has a signtficant relationship.

Jointly Governed OQrganization

Caddo-Shreveport _Sales_and Usc Tax_Commission — The Commission 18 an independent agency
rcsponsible for the collection, enforcement, and administration of sales and usc taxes levied by the Schoo!l
Board and the City of Shreveport. The Commission is considered a separate accounting entity and issucs
financial statements scparate from those of the School Board. The School Board docs not relain an
ongoing fiancial mnterest or responsibility 1n its operations. The Commission 1s not considered a
component unit of the School Board and 1ts operations arc not included in the accompanying f{inancial
statements. Financial statements for the Commission can be obtained from the Commission, Shreveport,
Louisiana.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
C. FUND ACCOUNTING

The School Board uses funds and account groups 1o report on its financial position and the results of its
operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid {inancial management
by scgregating transactions relating to certain government functions or activities.

A fund is a scparale accounting cntity with a sclf-balancing set of accounts. On the other hand, an account
group is a financial reporting device designed 1o provide accountability for certain assets and habilitics
that arc not recorded in the funds because they are not involved with the mecasurement of results of
opcrations.

Funds of the School Board arc classificd into three categorics: governmental, proprictary and fiduciary.
In turn, cach category is divided into separate fund types. The fund classifications and a description of
cach existing fund type follow:

Governmental Funds — Governmental funds account for all or most of the School Board's general
activitics, including the collection and disbursement of specific or egally restricted monics, the
acquisition or construction of gencral fixed asscts, and the servicing of peneral Jong-term debt.
Governmental funds include:

1. General Fund — the general operating fund of the School Board accounts for all financial
resources, excepl thosc required to be accounted for i other funds.

2. Special Revenue Funds — account for the procceds of specific revenue sources that arc legally
restricted to expenditures for specificd purposcs.

3. Debt Service Fund — accounts for transactions relating to resources retained and used for the
payment of principal and interest on those long-term obligations recorded in the general long-term
obligations account group.

4. Capital Projects Fund — accounts for financial resources received and used for the acquisition,
construction or improvement of capital facilities not reported in other governmental funds.

Proprietary Fund Type — Proprictary funds account for activitics sinular to thosc found m the
privale scctor, where the determination of nct income is nccessary or uscful to sound financial
administration. Proprictary funds differ from governmental funds in that their focus 1s on mcome
measurement, which, 1ogether with the maintenance of cquity, is an imporiant financial indicator. The
School Board has one proprietary fund, which is an internal service fund. The following is the School
Board's proprictary fund type:
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998
NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. FUND ACCOUNTING (Continued)

Proprictary Fund Type (Continued)

Internal Service Fund — An internal service fund 1s used to account for the accumulation of
resources for and the payment of benefits by the School Board's risk retention program. On April 1,
1997 the School Board changed to a {fully insured plan.  All claims occurring after April 1, 1997,
belong to the carrier. Current-year activity consisted of paying run-out claims incurred before Apnil
1997 but filed in the current year. Once all liabilities arc paid, the mternal scrvice fund will be
terminated.

Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary funds account for assets held on behall of outside partics, including other
governments, or on behalf of other funds within the School Board. Fiduciary funds include:

Agency Funds arc uscd to account for asscts held by the School Board as an agent for others.

The Nonexpendable Trust Fund is used to account for asscts held by the School Board in trust, of
which the principal may not be expended.

Account Groups

The general fixed assets account group is used to account for fixed asscts not accounted for in
proprietary or trust funds.

The general long-term debt account group is used to account for general Jong-term debt and certain
other liabilitics that are not specific liabilitics of proprictary or trust funds.

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
Governmental Funds

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus.
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurcment focus and the modificd
accrual basis of accounting. Under the modificd accrual basis of accounting revenucs arc recognized when
susceptible to accrual (i.c., when they arc "measurable and availablc".) "Mcasurable” means the amount
of the transaction can be determined and "available” means collectible within the current period or soon
cnough thercafier (o pay liabilitics of the current period. The government considers all revenucs available
if they arc collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
fiability is incurred, except for unmatured principal and interest on general long-term debt which 1s
recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognmzed
when the obligations arc expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)
Governmental Funds (Continued)
With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilitics are gencrally included on the
balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases and decrcascs in net current asscts.
The governmental funds use the following practices n recording revenues and expenditures:
Revenues — Fcderal and stalc cntitlements (which include state cqualization and state revenuc

sharmg) arc rccorded as unrestricted grants-in-aid when available and mcasurable. Federal and state
restricted grants are recorded when the reimbursable expenditures have been incurred.

Federal commoditics are recognized as revenues in the accounting period 1n which they are received.

Ad valorem taxcs receivable are recorded in the year the taxcs are due and payable. Ad valorem taxcs
arc asscsscd on a calendar ycar basis and become delinquent on December 31, The taxcs generally
arc collected in December, January and February of the fiscal year.

Food scrvices income 1s recorded as revenue when collected.  All food scrvices mcome applicable to
an accouniing period is collecicd during that accounting period.

Interest carmimgs on {ime deposits are recorded when the time deposits have maturcd and the mterest

i1s availablc. Interest income on imterest bearing demand deposits 1s recorded cach month when
credited by the bank 1o the account.

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when they become available to the School Board.

Expenditures — Salaries arc recorded as expenditures when carned.  Teachers' salarics are carned
over a ninc-month period, but arc paid over a twelve-month period.

Purchascs of various opecrating supplies are recorded as expenditures in the accounting period they are
purchased.

Compensated absences are recognized as expenditurcs when leave is actually taken or when

cmployces (or heirs) arc paid for accrued leave upon rctircment or death, while the cost of lcave
privilcges not requiring current resources 1s recorded in the general long-term obligations account

group.
Principal and mterest on general long-term debt are recognized when duc.

Substantially all other expenditurcs are recognized when the related fund liability has been mcurred.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (Continued)

Other Financing Sources (Uses) — Operating transicrs between funds that are not expected to be repaid
arc accounted for as other financing sources (uscs). Capital lcasc transactions, sale of fixed asscts, debt
cxtinguishments, long-term debt proceeds, et cetera also arc accounted for as other financing sources
(uscs). These other financing sources (uses) arc recognized at the time the underlymg events oceur.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds arc accountied for on the flow of cconomic resources measurement focus and usc the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues arc recorded when carned and expenscs are
rccorded at the time the liabilitics are incurred. With this measurement focus, all asscts and all labilities
associated with the opceration of these funds are included on the balance sheet.

Fiduciary Funds

The agency fund is custodial 1n naturc and does not present results of operations or have a measurcment
focus. Agency funds arc accounted for using the modificd accrual basis of accounting. This fund 1s used
(o account for assets that the School Board holds for others 1n an agency capacity.

The nonexpendable trust fund 1s accounted for in essentially the same manner as the proprictary fund,
using the same measurcment {ocus and basis of accounting. Nonexpendable trust funds account for asscts
of which the principal may not be spent.

E. BUDGETS

General Budget Policies

The School Board utilizes the following procedures in cstablishing the budgetary data reflected mn the
financial statements:

About May 1, the Superintendent submits to the School Board a proposcd operating budget for the
fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed cxpenditures
and sourccs of funding. A public hearing is then conducted aficr proper offictal journal notification
1o oblain taxpayer comments. Prior to July 1, the budget is legally adopted by the School Board
during public session.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes 1o the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. BUDGETS (Continued)

General Budget Policies (Continued)

The budget document for the general fund, special revenue funds, debt service fund, and capital
projects fund is structured such that revenucs are budgeled by source and appropriations by function.
Schoo! Board policy prescribes that the level of budgetary control is at the functional level for the
general fund, debt service fund and capital projects fund and at the fund level for the special revenue
funds. Legal requircments provide thal expenditures may not cxcced appropriations in excess of five
pereent of the budgeted expenditurcs at the fund level. Revisions 1o the budget as cnacted on a

funictional level require School Board approval. Budget amounts included in the accompanying
financial statements include the original adopted budget and amendment. The School Board issucs
a budget report at least annually that demonstrates legal compliance at the Icgal level of budgctary

conirol.

The School Board utilizes formal budgetary integration as a management control device for the gencral
fund, all special revenuce funds, debt scrvice fund, capital projects fund, and internal scrvice fund.

Comparison of budgcted and actual amounts 1s included in Statement C in the accompanying financial
report and includes all funds for which budgels are legally required. The budget and actual
comparisons arc made by source for revenucs and by function {for expenditures. Annual budgets arc
nof required and arc not presented in the accompanying financial report for the internal service fund,
the nonexpendable trust {fund and fiduciary funds.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is not cmployed in governmental funds. Oulstanding cncumbrances (c.g.,
purchasc orders, contracts) lapsc at ycar end. To the extent the Board intends 1o honor the purchasc orders
and commitments, they are reported as reservations of fund balances.  Authorization for the cventual

cxpenduture will be included in the following year's budget appropriations,

Budgetl Basis of Accounting

The basis of accounting applied 10 budgetary data presented is substantially consistent with the appropriate
basis of accounting for cach fund type for which an annual budget 1s prepared except for the capital project
fund which 1s budgcled on a cash basis. Budgeted amounts reflected in the accompanying budget and
actual comparison arc as originally adopted and legally amended by the School Board during the fiscal

ycar. Appropriations which arc not expended lapsc at year-end.
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Caddo Parish Schoo! Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
F. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash includes amounts 1in demand deposits and intergst-bearing demand deposits. Cash cquivalents include
amounts 1n mvestments with original maturitics of ninety days or less. Under state law, the School Board may
deposit funds i demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits
with statc banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana.

G. INVESTMENTS

Under statc law, the School Board may mvest in United States bonds, treasury nofes or certificates. These are
classified as investments if their original maturitics excecd nincty days; however, if the original maturitics arc
90 days or less, they are classified as cash cquivalents.

The investments are reflected at quoted market prices except for the following which arce required/permitted
as per GASB Statement No. 31;

1. Investments in ponpariicipating intcrest-carning contracts, such as nonncgotiable certificates of deposit
with redemption {erims that do not consider market rates, arc reported using a cost-based measure, ‘

2. The School Board reported at amortized cost moncy market investments and participating interes{-carning
mvestment contracts that have a remaining maturity at time of purchasc of onc year or Iess.

Definitions:

Intcrest-carning investment contract include time deposits with financial institutions (such as ccriificates
ol deposit), repurchase agreements, and guaranteed investment contracts.

Moncy markcel investments are short-ferm, highly liguid debt instruments that include U.S. Trecasury
oblhigations,

H. SHORT-TERM INTERFUND RECEIVABLES/PAYABLES

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for scrvices rendered.
These receivables and payables are classified as duc from other funds or duc to other funds on the balance
sheet. Short-term interfund loans are classified as interfund reccivables/payables.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Fimancial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
I. INVENTORIES

Inventory in the general fund consists of materials and supplics. Inventory of the Child Nutrition Program
speeial revenue fund consists solely of supplics and food purchased by the School Board, All commoditics
rcceived through both the cash in hew of commoditics program and the food distribution program arc received
and consumcd 1n the current year,

Material, food and supplics are accounted for on the consumption method. All purchascd mventory items are
valucd at cost (first-in, first-out). Inventorics arc cqually offset by a fund balance rescrve which indicates that
these do not constitute "available spendable resources,” even though they are a component of total asscts.

J. FIXED ASSETS

Fixcd asscts of governmental funds arc recorded as expenditures at the time they arc purchased or constructed,
and the relaled assctls arc capitalized (reported) n the general {ixed asscls account group. Public domamn or
infrastructurcs such as sidewalks and parking lots arc not capitalized. Depreciation has not been provided on
general {ixed asscts nor has interest been capitalized. All fixed asscts arc valued at actual historical cost or
cstimated historical cost, if actual historical cost 1s not available. Donalcd fixced asscts arc valued at their fair
markect valuc at the time of the donation.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add o the valuc of the assct or matcrially extend asscts'
lives are not included in the general {ixed asscts account group.

K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

All twelve-month cmployees carn from ten 1o twenty days of vacation lcave cach year, depending on their
length of serviee with the School Board. Vacation lcave may be accumulated up to one hundred and fifty
percent of their annwal allotment. Upon termination, cmployces may be paid for up (o thirty days of unuscd
vacation lcave.

All School Board employecs carn from twelve to sixtcen days of sick lcave cach year, depending upon the
length of service. Sick Icave can be accumulated without limitation. Upon retirement or death, unused
accumulated sick leave of up to twenty-five days is paid 1o the employec or 1o the employce's estate at the
cmployee's current rate of pay. Under the Louisiana Teachers' Retirement Sysiem and the Louisiana School
Employces' Retirement System, all unpaid sick lcave is used in the retirement benefit computation as carned
SCIVICC.

Sabbatical lcave may be granted for rest and recuperation and for professional and cultural improvement. Any
ecmployce with a teaching certificate is entitled, subject to approval by the School Board, to onc semester of
sabbatical lIcavc after three years of continuous service or two semesters of sabbatical leave after six or more
years of continuous scrvice.



Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Loouisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

K. COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued)

The School Board's recognition and measurcment criteria for compensaled abscnces follows:

GASB Statement No. 16 provides that vacation leave and other compensated absences with similar
characteristics should be accrued as hability as the bencfits arc carned by the cmployees if both of the
following condittons arc met:

A. The cmployees' right to receive compensation are attributable 1o scrvices alrcady rendered.

B. Itis ])fobablc that the employer will compensate the employcees {or the benefits through paid time off
or some other means, such as cash payments at termination or retirement.

GASB Statement No. 16 provides that a liability for sick lcave should be accrued using onc of the
following termination approachcs:

A. An accrual for camed sick leave should be made only 1o the exient 1t 1s probable that the benefits wilt
result 1n termination payments, rather than be taken as absences due 10 illness or other contingencics,
such as medical appointments and funcrals.

B. Aliernatively, a governmental entity should cstimatce its accrucd sick Icave liability bascd on the sick
Icave accumulated at the balance sheet date by thosc employces who currently arc cligible to receive
termination payments as well as other employecs who arc expected to become cligible i the future
to recerve such payments.

l.cave benclits arc based on accrued lcave benefits of ecmployees with {en years scrvice 10 a maximum of
twenty-five days for sick lcave and thirty days for vacation at their current annual salary.

Sabbatical lcave benefits are recorded as expenditures in the period paid.

Only the current portion of the liability for compensated absences 1s reported in the fund. The current portion
1s the amount Icft unpaid at the end of the reporting period that normally would be hquidated with expendable
avallable financial rcsources. The remainder of the liability 1s reported 1n the gencral long-tcrm obligations
account group.

.. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations expected to be financed from governmental funds arc reporled 1n the general long-ierm
debt account group.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
M. FUND EQUITY

Reserves — Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditures or legally
scgregated for a specific future usc.

Designations — Designations indicatc a portion of the fund balance has been scgregated to indicaie
tentative plans for future financial resource use.

N. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Transactions that constitute reimburscments 1o a fund for expenditures 1nitially made from it that are properly
applicable 1o another fund arc recorded as expenditures 1o the reimbursing fund and as reductions of expendi-

tures in the fund that 1s reimbursed.

All other interfund transactions are reporled as transfers. Nonrecurring or non-routine permanent {ransfers of
cquity arc reported as residual cquity transfers. All other interfund transfers arc reported as operating transfers.

O. SALES TAXES

The School Board receives sales tax revenue from the following three sales tax:

The voters of Caddo Parish approved on Junc 6, 1967, a onc-half of onc percent (12%) parish-wide salcs
tax 10 be uscd 1o supplement salaries of tcachers of Caddo Parish and for the operation of public schools
in Caddo Parish.

The volters of Caddo Parish approved on May 27, 1969, a onc-half of onc percent (V2%) parish-wide salcs
tax 1o be used to supplecment salarics of tecachers of Caddo Parish and for the opceration of public schools

in Caddo Parish.

The voters of Caddo Parish approved on May 4, 1985, a onc-half of one percent ((42%) parish-wide salcs
tax to bc used to supplement salarics of teachers and other school board cmploycees and for the operation

of public schools in Caddo Parish.

P. CLAIMS AND JUDGEMENTS

lLosses resulting from claims and judgements arce estimated in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 10. The liability for such losses is recorded in the governmental funds for the

amount that will be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. The remainder of the liability

15 recorded 1n the general long-term debt account group. Incurred but not reported claims as of Junc 30, 1998
have been considered in determining the accrued liability.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Q. DEFERRED REVENUES

The School Board reports deferred revenucs on its combined balance sheel.  Deferred revenucs arise when
resources arc received by the School Board before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monics are
received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subscquent periods, when the School Board has
a lcgal claim 1o the resources, the hability for deferred revenue 1s removed from the combined balance sheet
and the revenuc is recognized.

R. MEMORANDUM ONLY - TOTAL COLUMNS

The total columns on the combined statements are captioncd Mcemorandum Only to ndicate that they are
presented only 1o facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present financial position, results

of opcrations or cash flows in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Neither 1s such data
comparable to a consolidation. Interfund climinations have not been made in the aggregation of this data.

S. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with gencrally accepled accounting principles requires
management 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporled amounts of assets and liabilitics and
disclosurc of contingent asscts and hiabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues, expenditures, expenses, and other financing sources and uses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2-STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Material Violations of Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions

Louisiana Revised Statutes Title 39 - Public Finance addresses collateralization requircments for public funds.
Specifically, LSA-RS 39:1218 and LSA-RS 39:1225 require that fiscal agents of a depositing authority, such
as the School Board, provide security al all times cqual to onc hundred percent of the amount of collected
funds. The sccurttics should be of the types outlined in LSA- RS 39:1221.

At June 30, 1998, the School Board had total deposits of $66,863,014 with scven banks. $64,725,072 of this
total was on deposit with their fiscal agent while the remaining $2.137,942 was on deposit with six other arca
banks. Collateral pledged by the fiscal agent as of June 30, 1998 totaled $63,471,903. Thus left $1,253,169
of the School Board's deposits with the fiscal agent uncollateralized. The remaining deposits with the other
six banks are not considered to be materially uncollateralized.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

B. Deficit Retained Earnings

The following fund has a dcficit in the retained carnings at Junc 30, 1998:

Deficit
Fund Amount
Proprictary fund - internal service $46.,930

Management expects 1o correct the deficit in the group hospitalization fund by a transfer from the gencral fund
in the 1998-1999 fiscal year.

C. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Individual Funds

The following individual funds had actual expenditures over budgeted expenditures for the year ended Junc 30,

1998:
Unfavorable
FFund Budgct Actual Variance
Special Revenue Funds
Title 1 $12.002.294  $12,006,371 $ 4,077
Adult Education 373,525 392,443 18,918
Child Nutrition Program 17,097,000 17,801,947 704,947
JROTC Carcer Academy 17,297 151,809 134,512
Debt Service Fund 4.199.251 4.207.362 8111

Actual expenditures excecded appropriations as a result of unanticipated expenditures occurring in the month
of June aficr the last budget revision.

NOTE 3-BUDGET (NON-GAAP) TO ACTUAL RECONCILIATION

The capital project fund 1s budgeted on a cash basts and is reported for financial statements purposes on a generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) basis.

Fund balance - per Statement B $3,633,955
(GAAPY reporting purposcs)
To chminatc the cffects of recording
accounts payable for GAAP purposes 1.313.133

Fund balance - per Statement C $4.947.108
(Budget reporting purposcs)
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 4-LEVIED TAXES

The School Board levies taxes on rcal and business personal properly located within Cadde Parish's boundarics.
Property taxes arc levied by the School Board on property valucs asscsscd by the Caddo Parish Tax Asscssor and
approved by the state of Loutsiana Tax Commission.

The Caddo Parish Sheriff's Office bills and collects property taxcs for the School Board. Collections are remiited
to the School Board monthly.

Property Tax Calendar

Asscssment date January 1, 1997

Levy date Not later than June 1, 1997
Tax bills mailed November 23, 1997

Total taxes arc duc December 31, 1997

Licn datc January 1, 1998

Tax salc May 29, 1998

Asscssced valucs arc cstablished by the Caddo Parish Tax Asscssor cach ycar on a uniform basis at the following
ratios of asscssed value to fair markel value.

10% land 15% machinery
10% residential improvements 15% commercial improveiments
15% industrial improvements 25% public scrvice propertics, excluding land

A revaluation of all properly 1s required after 1978 1o be completed no less than cvery four years. The last
revaluation was completed for the roll of January 1, 1996. Tolal assessed valuc was $1,032.835,570 for calendar
year 1997, Louisiana statc law exempts the first $7,500 of assessed valuc of a taxpaycr's primary residence from
parish property taxes. This homestcad exempiion was $270,391,580 of the assesscd value in calendar year 1997,

Statc law requires the Sheriff 1o collect property taxes in the calendar year in which the asscssment is made.
Propcrty taxcs become delinquent January 1 of the following year. If taxes are not paid by the duc date, taxcs bear
mterest at the rate of 1.25 pereent per month until the taxes are paid.  Afier notice is given 1o the delinquent
taxpayecrs, the Shenff is required by the Constitution of the State of Louisiana to scll the least quantity of property
neeessary (o scitle the taxes and interest owed.

All property taxcs are recorded 1n the general fund, debt service fund and capital projcets fund on the basis explained
in note 1. Revenues m such funds arc recognized in the accounting period in which they become measurable and
avallable. Property taxes are considered measurable in the calendar year of the tax levy.

Dclinquent taxes considered to be uncollectible are not recorded as revenucs.  Properly taxes reccivable arc
considered available because they are substantially collected within 60 days subsequent to year end.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 4-LEVIED TAXES (Continued)

All 1997 property taxed that had not been received as of June 30, 1998 were writlen off as uncollectible. The tax
roll is not preparcd by the tax asscssor until November of cach year; therefore, the amount of 1998 property taxcs
to be collected within the next year 1s not known. As a result, no propertly tax receivable for 1998 taxes 15 included
on the accompanying combined balance sheet.

The following 1s a summary of authorized and levicd (tax rate per $1,000 Asscssed Value) ad valorem taxes:

Date of Voter Authorized Levicd Expiration
Parish-wide taxes __Approval Millage Millagc Datc
Constitutional Statutory 5.00 9.41 Statutory
Opcration and Mainicnance January 16, 1993 12.67 12.37 2003
Opcration and Mainicnance January 16, 1993 19.26 18.80 2003
Technology October 18, 1997 1.50 1.50 2006
Employce Salaries & Benefits October 18, 1997 21.79 21.79 2000
Construction January 16, 1993 7.71 7.53 2003
Construction October 18, 1997 6.28 6.28 2006
Bond and Intercst May 4, 1985 Variable 5.40 2005
Bond and Intcrest October 18, 1997 Variablc 2.00 2017

The difference between authorized and levied millages are the result of the reasscssment of taxable property required
by Article 7, Section 23 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974,

NOTE 5-DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
At Junc 30, 1998, the School Board has cash and cash cquivalents {(book balances) totaling $48,309,186 as follows:

Deposits are stated at cost, which approximates fair valuc. Under state law, these deposits {or the resulting bank
balances) must be sceured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of sccuritics owned by the fiscal agent bank.
The fair value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on
deposit with the fiscal agent. These scecuritics are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank mn a holding
or custodial bank that 1s mutually acceptable to both parties.

At year-cnd, the School Board's carrying amount of deposits was $51,214,970 and the bank balance was
$66,863,014. (M the bank balance, $893,690 was covered by federal depository insurance or by collateral held by
the School Board's agent in the School Board's name (GASB Category 1). $64,716,155 was collateralized with
sccuritics held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the School Board's name
(GASB Category 3). The remaining balance of $1,253,169 is not secured by the pledge of sccurilics and i1s a
violation of statc law.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 5-DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Even though the pledged sccuritics arc considered uncollatcralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB
Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposcs a statutory requirement on the custodial bank 10 adverlise
and scll the pledged securitics within 10 days of being notified by the School Board that the fiscal agent has failed
1o pay deposited funds upon demand.

The School Board maintains a sweep account for the operating funds of the School Board, Each fund's cash account
is swept daily for excess cash. Excess amounts are invested in an overnight repurchase agreement which is invesicd
in United States government treasury bills, trcasury notes, and certificates of deposit. The U. S. government
investments arc held in the School Board's name through a book-entry system at the Federal Rescrve Bank,
therefore, these investments were considered 1o be Category 1 which includes investments that arc collateralized
with sccuritics held by the pledging {inancial institution's trust department or its safekeeping agent i the School
Board's name. Because the repurchase agreements mature daily and are highly liquid, the School Board treats these
repurchase agreements as cash equivalents.

Invesiments arc categorized into thesc three categories of credit risk:
{. Insured or regisiered, or sccurities held by the School Board or its agent in the School Board's name.

2. Uninsured and unregistered, with sccuritics held by the counter parly's trust department or agent in the
School Board's name.

3. Uninsured and unregisiered, with sccuritics held by the counter party, or by 1ts trusi department or agent
but not 1n the School Board's name.

At year end, the School Board investment balances included the following:

Carrying Amount Total
Category Fair Carrying
1 2 ~ 3  Valuc Cost Amount
Time deposits $ - $2905,784 § - $ - $2,905,784  $2,905,784
Investments not subjcct
o calcgorization: |
Cash held i state {reasury - - - - 70,582 70.582
Total investments $ - $2905784 § - - $2.976,366  $2.976,366
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NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

The receivables of $10,243.577 at Junc 30, 1998, are as follows:

(Class of Receivables

Local: salcs tax
Intcrgovernmental - grants:
Statc
Federal
Other accounts
Intcrest

Total

NOTE 7 - FIXED ASSETS

The changes in genceral fixed asscts are as foliows:

Land

Buildings and improvements
Furnifure and cquipment
Transportation cquipment

Total

Special Capital Fiduciary-
General Revenue  Project Trust and
Fund Funds Fund Agency Total
$4,181,597 % - $ - $ - § 4,181,597
- 1,432,114 i - 1,432,114
- 3,405,594 - - 3,405,594
200,138 362,695 329 - 563,162
576,890 25.057 - 59,163 661,110
$4.958.625 $5.225.460 329 $59.163 $10,243 577
Balance Balance
July ], 1997 Additions Dcletions  Jung 30, 1998
$ 5168136 § . $ - $ 5168136
146,568,965 4,305,678 60,585 150,814,058
35.182.260 4.817.919 286414 39,713,765
17.427.711 910,058 - 18,337,769
$204.347.072  $10.033.655 $346.999  $214.033.728

NOTE 8- RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

Plan description

Substantially all School Board employees participate in cither the Teachers' Retirement System or the School
Employces' Retirement System (the Systems), which are cost-sharing, multiple-cmployer public employce retirement
systems (PERS). Benefit provisions are ulumately approved and amended by the Louisiana Legislature,

Participation in the Teachers' Retirement System 1s divided into two plans - the Teachers' Regular Plan and the
Teachers' Plan A, In general, professional employees (such as teachers and principals) and lunchroom workers are
members of the Lowisiana Teachers' Retirement System (TRS); other employeces, such as custodial personnel and
bus drivers, arc members of the Louisiana School Employecs' Retirement System (LSERS). Generally, all full-time
cmployees are cligible to participate in the system.
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NOTE 8- RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

With respect 1o the Teachers' Retirement System Regular Plan, normal retirement 1s al age sixty with ten years of
service, or at any age with twenty years of service. The formula for annual maximum retirement benefits 1s
gencrally two percent (with less than twenty-five years of service) or 2.5 percent (with twenty-five or morce years
of service) times the years of creditable service times the average salary of the thirty-six highest successive months
(plus $300 apphcable to persons becoming members prior 1o July 1, 1986).

Under the Teachers' Retirement System Plan A normal retirement is generally at any age with 30 or more years of
creditable scrvice, at age fifty-five with at least twenty-five years of creditable service and at age sixty with at lcast
tcn years of creditable service. The retirement benefit formula is generally three pereent times the years of creditable
scrvice limes the average salary of the thirty-six highest successive months plus $24 per year of scrvice.

Employccs participating in the School Employces' Retirement System are cligible for normal retirement afler thirty
years of service, or afler twenty-five years of service at age fifty-five or after ten years of service at age sixty. The
maximum retirement allowance 1s computed at 2.5 pereent times the highest thirty-six months of average salary,
times the years of service plus a supplement of $2.00 per month times the ycars of scrvice.

Both TRS and L.SERS issuc annual financial reports. The reports can be obtained by telephoning or writing to the
following:

Teachers' Retirement System of Louisiana Louisiana School Employces' Retirement System
Post Officc Box 94123 Post Officc Box 44516
Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804-9123 Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804
(225) 925-6446 (225)925-6484
Funding Policy

Each system is administered and controlled at the state level by a scparate board of trustees, with contribution ratcs
approved and amended by the Louisiana Legislature. Benefits of the systems arc funded by employee and employer
contributions. Benefits granted by the retirement systems arc guarantced by the statc of Louisiana under provisions
of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. The School Board's ecmployer contribution for the TRS, as provided by statc
law, 15 funded by the state of Louisiana through annual appropriations, by deductions from local ad valorem taxes,
and by remittances from the School Board. For the LSERS, the School Board's employer contribution is funded
by the statce of Louisiana through annual appropriations.

In addition, the employer docs not remit (o the Teachers' Retirement Systcm, Regular Plan or Plan A, the cmployer's

contribution for the profcssional improvement program (PIP) portion of payroll. The PIP contribution is madc
dircctly to the Retirement System by the state of Louisiana.
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NOTE 8- RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued)

Contribution rates (as a percentage of covered salarics) for active plan members as cslabhshcd by the Louisiana
Legislature for the year ended June 30, 1998 are as {ollows:

Employce Employer

Louisiana Teachers' Retirement System:
Regular 8.00% 16.40%
Plan A 9.10% 16.40%
Lowsiana School Employecs' Retirement System 6.35% 6.00%

Total covered payroll of the School Board for TRS - Regular Plan, TRS - Plan A, and LSERS for the ycar ended
Junc 30, 1998 amounted 10 $142,142,404, $2,348,881, and $15,379,7060 respectively. Employer contributions for
the year ended Junc 30, 1998 and cach of the two preceding years are as follows:

...................... TRS........ e JLSERS

Pcrcentlage Pcreentage

Annual of Annual Annual of Annual

Actuarially Required Actuarially Required
Required Contribution Required  Contribufion

Fiscal Ycar Ending Contribution Paid Contribution Paid

Junc 30, 1996 $22,326,760 92.75 % $857,770 98.04 %
June 30, 1997 22.671,137 92.30 % 817,127 100.33 %
Junec 30, 1998 25,517,161 87.01 % 919,709 100.33 %

Annual actuarially requircd contributions for cach plan above is based on the plan's annual financial report for that
year except for the ycar ended June 30, 1998, Each annual actuarially required contribution for the ycar ended
June 30, 1998 1s based upon each plan's annual financial report for the year ended June 30, 1997 which is the latest
mformation available.

NOTE 9-OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

In accordance with state statutes, the Caddo Parish School Board provides certain continuing health carc and life
insurance benefits for s retired employees.  Substantially all of the Schoo! Board's employees become eligible for
these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for the School Board. These benefits for retirces
and similar benefits for active employces were provided through a sclf-insurance program, whosc monthly premivms
arc paid jointly by the employees and the School Board. The cost of retiree benefits totaled $4,266,634 in 1998 {or
approximately 2,353 retirecs.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes 1o the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 10 - ACCOUNTS, SALARIES AND OTHER PAYABLES

The payables of $21,365,772 at Junc 30, 1998, arc as {ollows:

Special Debt Capital

General Revenue  Scrvice Projects  Agency Total
Salarics and withholding $16,930,669 $140611 § - $§ 45522 % - $17,116,802
Accounts 2041,412 695,167 58,099 1345653 41972  4.182.303
Incurred but not reported claims 66.667 - - - - 66,667
Total $19.038748 $835.778 $58.099 $1.391.175 $41.972 $21.365.772

NOTE 11 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

At Junc 30, 1998, employces of the School Board have accumulated and vested $15,005,289 of employce lcave
benefits, which was computed 1n accordance with GASB Codification Scction C60. Of this amount $1,048,191 1s
expected to be paid from current available resources and 1s recorded in the general fund. The balance of the liability
of $13,957,098 is recorded within the general long-term debt account group since the amount is not ¢xpeceted to be
paid from current available resources. :

NOTE 12 - CHANGES IN AGENCY FUNDS DEPOSITS DUE OTHERS
A summary of changes in agency funds deposits duc others for the year ended June 30, 1998 is as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1. 1997 Additions Dcductions  June 30, 1998

Agency funds:
School activity $2,536,872 $8.900,196 $8,562.270 $2.874.798

Central office concession 852 21.648 21,716 784

$2,537,724 $8.921.844 $8,583.986 $2.875,582

NOTE 13 - CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following 1s a summary of the long-term obligation transactions for the year ended Junce 30, 1998:

Balance Dcbt Retired/ Balance
July 1, 1997 Additions Payments ~ Junc 30, 1998
Bonds payablc $26,790.000 $ - $2,705,000  $24,085,000
Claims and judgments payable 568 415 - 214532 353,883
Compensated abscences payable 13,612,585 3.302.825 2958312 13.957.098

$40971.000  $3.302.825  $5.877.844  $38,395.981
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 13 - CHANGES IN GENERAL LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

All School Board bonds outstanding at June 30, 1998, in the amount of $24,085,000, are gencral obligation bonds
with maturity in 2005 and interest rates from 2.65 1o 5.20 percent. Bond principal and mterest payable in the next
fiscal year arc $2,865,000 and $1,177,260, respectively. The individual issuc 1s as follows:

Issuc Final Principal
Interest Payment Outstanding
School District Datc Amount Rates Due June 30, 1998
Refunding Bonds 1993 $28.265,000 2.65-520%  03-01-05 $24.085.000

All principal and micrest requirements are funded in accordance with Louisiana law by annual ad valorem tax levy
on taxable property within the parish and through general fund operations. At June 30, 1998, the School Board has
accumulated $2,483,213 in the debt service fund for future debt requirements. The bonds are duc as follows:

General Interest Due
Obligation On Bonds

Ycars Ending Junc 30, Bonds Payablc Pavablc Total
1999 $ 2,865,000 $1,177,260  $ 4,042,260
2000 3,025,000 1,051,200 4,076,200
2001 3,200,000 912,050 4,112,050
2002 3,400,000 758,450 4,158,450
2003 3,615,000 501,850 4,206,850
2004-2005 7.980.000 625,340 8,005,340

Tolal $24.085.000 $5,116,150  $29,201.150

In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 39:562, the School Board 1s legally restricted from incurring
long-tcrm bonded debt in excess of 35 percent of the asscssed value of taxable property. At June 30, 1998, the
statutory limit 1s $361,492 450, and nct outstanding bonded debt totals $21,601,787.
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General Fund

Speccial Revenuc Funds:

Title |
Title VI

Special Education

Tatlc 1l

Title IV (Drug-Free)
8G State Fund
Aduli Education

NOTE 14 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund receivables/payables:

Vocational Education

Goals 2000
JTPA

Miscellancous State/Federal Grants

Proprictary Fund - Internal Service

Group Hospitalization

Total

General Fund
Special Revenue:

Adult Education
Misceliancous State/Federal Grants
Capital Projects:

Capital Projcct

Nonexpendable Trust.

Caddo Educational Excellence

Total

Interfund operating transfers:
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

Interfund reccivables/payables at June 30, 1998, were as follows:

Opcrating transfers {or the year ended Junc 30, 1998, were as follows:
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Reccivable

$4,662 408

$4,662.408

In

S—

$ 151,261

125,000

1,000,000

$1.276,26)

_—e— e m  —_—  —_— — — — — o

Pavablc

$2,023,531
35,000
234.40]
66,788
79.500
204,038
74,400
212,600
202,549
10,750
1458851

60,000

$4.662,408

Out
$1.125,000

3241

148,020

$1.276.261




Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 15 - RESERVED AND DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

Reservations:

Encumbrances Encumbrances outstanding atl year-end represent the estimated amount the School Board
mtends to honor as a commitment regardless of the lapsc in the appropriation.

Inventory This amount represents the portion of fund balance relating 1o inventory on hand which 1s
therefore unavailable to be expended for other purposes.

Debt Service This amount represents the portion of fund balance that has been reserved in the debt service
fund for futurc payment of principal and interest on bonded debt.

Instructional Enhancement This amount represents the portion of fund balance that has been rescrved
in the Caddo Educational Exccllence fund (nonexpendable trust).

Designations:

Designated for Contingencies This amount represents a portion of fund balance that has been designated
to fund possiblc losses from lawsuits and sclf-insurance lability.

Designated for Equipment Replacement This amount has been accumulated over several years 1o fund
the replacement or updating of data processing cguipment.

NOTE 16 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

Litigation

The School Board is a defendant in several lawsuits. Managemeni ang legal counsel for the School Board
belicve that the potential claims against the School Board not covered by imsurance would not materially affect
the School Board's combined financial position.

Tax Arbitrage Rebate

Under the Tax Reform Act of 1986, interest carned on the debt proceeds in exeess of interest expense prior
to the disbursement of the proceeds must be rebated to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). Management
belicves there 1s no 1ax arbirage liabilily at vear end.

Grant Disallowances

The School Board participates in a number of state and federally assistcd grant programs. The programs arc
subject 10 complhiance audits under the single audit. Such audits could lead to requests for reimburscment by
the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. School Board management belicves
that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from future audits will not be materal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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NOTE 16 - LITIGATION AND CLAIMS (Continued)

Self-Insurance

The School Board 1s partially self-insurcd for workers' compensation.  Claims are funded through employece
contributions and opcrating funds of the School Board. All known claims filed and an cstimate of incurred
but not reported claims bascd on experience of the School Board are made and accrucd as nccessary in the
financial statements. A portion of fund balance of the general fund has been designated for payment of future
claims.

NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The School Board is exposed to various risks of toss rclated 1o torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of asscts;
crrors and omissions; injurics 1o cmployecs; and natural disasters. The School Board i1s a defendant in scveral
lawsuits involving civil actions. The School Board is self-insured for losses up to $200,000. The School Board
currently reports all of its risk management activities except for employees' health insurance 1n the general fund and
the gencral long-term debt account group. An insurance policy covers individual claims in excess of $200,000.
Claims expenditurcs and liabilities are reported when 1t is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that
loss can bc reasonably cstimated. Thesc losses include an estimalte of claims that have been imcurred but not
reported. This hiability is the School Board's best estimate based on available information.

At June 30, 199§, $5,672,210 of the fund balance of the gencral {fund 1s designated for payment of future claims.

Prior 1o April 1, 1997, the School Board provided a sclf-insurcd health insurance plan for employees.  Stop-loss
insurance was maintained for losses in excess of 105% of expecied claims.

On April 1, 1997 the School Board changed 1o a fully insured health insurance plan with Bluc Cross/Bluc Shicld
of Lowmisiana. All financial risk for claims incurred after April 1, 1997, belong to Blue Cross. Thercfore, no cstimatc
of incurrcd but unrcporied claims is necessary as of Junc 30, 1998,

Current-year aclivity consisted of run-out claims for health services incurred before April 1, 1997, and submiticd
for payment this fiscal year. The total amount paid in run-out claim benefits, including administrative scrvices,
totaled $307,712. Employer contributions paid {rom the gencral fund to the internal service fund covered these
claims.

The internal service fund curred a net gain during the fiscal year of $451,419 and at Junc 30, 1998 had a deficit
rctained camings of $46,930.
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NOTE 17 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Changes in the reporied liability for the current and recent previous fiscal ycar arc as follows:

Beginning of Claims and Benefit Balance at
Fiscal Ycar Changcs in Payments Fiscal
Liability Estimatcs and Claims Year-End
Risk Managcement Activitics
(other than Group Health)
1996-1997 $1,105,308 § 795,276 § 1,038,64] $ 861,943
1997-1998 861,943 601,390 1,247,374 215,959
Group Health Insurance
1996-1997 6,117,984 17,707,366 22,066,934 1,758,416
1997-1998 1,758,416 284,537 2,042,953 -

The School Board continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss except general liability. Settled
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
ycars.

NOTE 18 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Under the guidelines cstablished in accordance with the Internal Revenue Code Section 457, the School Board has
a deferred compensation plan which is administered by First Financial Administrators, Inc., on bechalfl of all
participating employecs. The plan, mandatory for part-time, seasonal and temporary employces and voluntary for
all Tull-time cmployccs, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred pay and any
income carncd on it is not subject to income taxes unfil actually reccived by the employce. The deferred
compensation is not available 1o ecmployecs until termination, retirement, death, or unforesecable emergency.

The asscts in the plans remain the property of the Schoal Board until paid or made available to participants, subject
only to the claims of the School Board's creditors. The participants have no vested interest or sccured or preferred
position with respect to the assets or have any claim against the School Board, except as a general creditor, in an
amowit cqual (o the fair market value of the participant’s account.

11 is the opinion of the School Board's legal counsel that the School Board is not hable for losses arismg {rom
depreciation or shrinkage in - the value of any investments acquired under the deferred compensation plans.,
However, the School Board belicves it has the duty of duc care that would be required of an ordinary prudent
investor. The School Board also belicves that it is unlikely that it will use the asscts to satis{y the claims of gencral
creditors in the future. Transactions related 1o the deferred compensation plan are recorded as an agency fund. The
assets of the deferred compensation plan are stated at market value.
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NOTE 18 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION (Continued)

A summary of changes in deferred compensation payable for the year ended June 30, 1998 15 as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1. 1997 Additions Deductions  June 30, 1998
Deferred compensation payable $3.818.191 $ - $3.818.191 § -

NOTE 19 - ON-BEHALF PAYMENTS FOR FRINGE BENEFITS AND SALARIES

On-bchalf payments for fringe benefits and salaries are direct payments made by an cntity (the paying agent) 1o a
third-party rccipient for the employees of another, legally separate entity (the employer entity). GASB Statement
No. 24 requires cmployer governments to recognize revenue and cxpenditures or expenses for these on-behalf
payments,

The state of Louisiana madc pension contributions (regarding Professional Improvement Program) dircctly to the
Teachers' Retirement System of Lowuisiana on behalf of the School Board in the amount of $249,980. This amount
was rccognized as state revenuc and a corresponding cxpenditure in the general fund from which the salary was paid.

NOTE 20 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The School Board issucd $20,000,000 of gencral obligation bonds on July 1, 1998, The issuc was a portion of
$48,000,000 of gencral obligation bonds authorized by the citizens of Caddo Parish i a special clection held
October 18, 1997. The proceeds from the bonds are to be used for the acquisition and construction of new
classrooms at existing public schools in Caddo Parish. The bonds arc 10 be repaid from revenues generated by a
6.10 ml! ad valorem tax.

The School Board purchased 39 buscs m July 1998. The total cost of the school buscs was approximatcly
$1,793,000.

The School Board received approximately $1,010,000 as a state supplement in August 1998, The revenuc s a onc-
time supplement for the purpose of paying salarics for support personncl.

The School Board held elections for board members on October 3, 1998, These clections were for a term {from
January 1, 1999 {o December 31, 2002,

The School Board began construction on classroom wings at seven schools in Scptember 1998.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

TITLE]

To improve the educational opportunitics of educationally deprived children by helping them succeed 1in the regular
school program, attain grade Ievel proficiency and improve achicvement in basic and more advanced skills. Primarily
for provision of compensatory instructional activitics 10 cducationally deprived children that reside in low-mcome arcas
and have been selected on the basis of a needs assessment. Services supplement, not supplant, thosc normally provided
by statc and local educational agencics.

TITLE VI

To assist state and local educational agencics to improve elementary and sccondary education.

Grants arc awarded for students at risk of failure 11 school; instructional matenials; school-wide improvements and
cffective school programs; training and professional development; carly identification of children with reading
disabilitics, personal excellence of students and student achicvements; and innovative enhancements projects to the
cducational program and climatc of the school.

SPECIAL EDUCATION

SPECIAL EDUCATION - STATE GRANTS

To provide grants (o states (o assist them 1 providing a frec appropriate public cducation to all children with
disabilitics.

PAYMENTS TO STATES FOR CHILD CARE ASSISTANCE

To make grants available to assist low-income families with child care services. The purpose of the program is
to increase the availability, affordability, and quality of child care and to mcrease the availability of carly childhood
development and before- and after-school programs,

PRESCHOOIL. GRANTS

To provide grants Lo states Lo assist them in providing a {ree appropriate public cducation to preschool disabled
children aged three through five years.

TITLE 11

To mmprove the skills of tcachers and the quality of mstruction in mathcmatics and scicnce, also 1o incrcasc the
accessibility of such instruction to all students.

TITLE XIX

Tthus fund 1s a federally funded program to immprove the health status of children by providing preventive services, health

asscssments, and the nocessary diagnosis, treatment and follow-up care in the context of an ongoing relationship between
the patient and other health care providers.




Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Continued)

TITLE IV - (DRUG-FREE)

To cstablish state and local programs of alcohol and drug abuse education and prevention coordinated with related
community cfforls and resources.

FAMILY SUPPORT

Family Support was established to account for the receipts and expenditures of a federally funded program to provide
cducational services to participale in Project Independence.  These educational serviees include (raining welfare mothers
with job skills while providing day-care for their children,

8G STATE I'UND

The 8G state fund is a program to provide enhancement to clementary, sccondary and vocational programs funded
through the State Minimum Foundation Program.

ADULT EDUCATION

To improve educational opportunitics for adults and to encourage the cstablishment of adult education programs that
will enable all adults to acquire basic educational skills necessary 10 function in a literate socicty, enable adults who so
desire to complete secondary school, and enable adults to benefit from job training and retraining programs and obtain
productive employment to more fully enjoy the benefits and responsibilitics of citizenship.

Special cmphasis is given 1o programs of instruction m computational skills and in speaking, rcading, oy writing English
for thosc adults who arc cducationally disadvantaged.

VOQCATIONAL EDUCATION

To make the United States more competitive in the world cconomy by developing more fully the academic and
occupational skills of all segments of the population, principally through concentrating resources on improving
cducational programs leading to academic and occupational skills needed to work in a technologically advanced socicty.

CHILD NUTRITION PROGRAM

To assist through cash grants and food donations in providing a nutritious breakfast and lunch scrvice for school
students and to encourage the domestic consumption of nutritious agricultural consmoditics.

GOAL.S 2000

To provide grants to State Education Agencies (SEAs) on a formula basis 1o support the development and
implementation of comprehensive reform plans at the state, local, and school levels to improve the teaching and lcarning
of all children. To support top down and bottom up reform through subgrants by SEAs of 90 percent of these grant
funds to local education agencics (LEAs) and through LEAs 1o individual schools. To support the establishiment by
states and localitics of high standards in their core content arcas. All aspects of the cducational process arc ahgned
including, but not limited to assessments, curriculum, profi cssional development, and pre-scrvice traming.
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Caddo Parish Schoo!l Beard
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (Concluded)

JITPA

To provide job training and related assistance to economically disadvantaged individuals and others who face significant
cmployment barricrs, The ultimate goal of the Act 15 to move trainces into permancnt, self-sustaining cmployment.

JROTC CAREER ACADEMY

JROTC 1s a federally funded program through the Department of Defense {for C. E. Byrd High School Carecr Academy.

MISCELLANEOUS STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS

The fund includes various small state and federal funded grants.




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, L ouisiana

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 1998

SPECIAL
TITLE { TITLE VI EDUCATION TITLE Nl
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,670 $ 19,844 § 10,831 ¢ 116
Receivables 2,516,647 16,881 235,060 70,526
Inventory D 0 0 0
Total Assets S 2536317 % 36,725 $ 245891 § 70,642
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts, salaries and other payables 409,767 1,725 11,490 1,799
Interfund payable 2,023,531 35,000 234,401 66,788
Deferred revenues 103,019 0 0 2,055
Total Liabilities $ 2536317 % 36,725 $ 245891 $ 70642
Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances $ 0% 0% 0% 0
Reserved for inventory 0 0 0 0
Unreserved
Designated for contingencies 0 0 0 0
Designated for equipment replacement 0 0 0 0
Undesignated 0 4 O 0
Total Fund Balances 0 0 0 0

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 2536317 § 36,725 $ 245,891 % 70,642
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Exhibit 1

TITLE IV FAMILY 8G STATE
TITLE XIX (DRUG-FREE) SUPPORT FUND
$ 307,462 $ 3,248 $ 36,638 $ 1,144
0 79,352 06,821 205,731
0 0 0 0

$ 307,462 § 82,600 $ 133,459 206,875

600 3,100 64,835 2,837

0 79,500 0 204,038

0 0 0 0

$ 600 $ 82,600 $ 64,835 $ 206,875
$ 0% 0$ 0% 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

306,862 0 68,624 0

306,862 0 68,624 0

> 307,452 $ 82,600 $ 133,459 $ 208,875

(CONTINUED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Balance Sheet - Special Revenue Funds
June 30, 1998

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables
Inventory

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts, salaries and other payables
Interfund payable
Deferred revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:
Reserved for encumbrances

Reserved for inventory

Unreserved
Designated for contingencies
Designated for equipment replacement
Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

CHILD
ADULT VOCATIONAL NUTRITION
EDUCATION EDUCATION PROGRAM
$ 4,876 $ 97,834 § 7,010,673
70,284 116,564 177,552
0 0 182,430

$ 75160 $ 214,498 3 7,370,655

$ 760 $ 1,898 § 225,999
74,400 212,600 0

0 0 204,636

$ 75,160 $ 214,498 $ 430,635
$ 0% 0% 212,930
0 0 182,430

O 0 1,477,704

0 0 3,623,836

0 0 1,643,120

$ 0% 0% 6,940,020

$ 75160 $ 214498 3 7,370,655

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Exhibit 1

JROTC MISCELLANEOQUS
CAREER STATE/FEDERAL

GOALS 2000 JTPA ACADEMY GRANTS TOTAL
$ 0% S0 $ 53,705 § 218,947 % 7,785,178
210,185 10,660 10,366 1,408,831 5,225,460
0 0 0 0 182,430

210,185 10,750 $ 64,071 $ 1627778 § 13,193,068

$ 7,636 $ 0% 0% 103,332 $ 835,778
202,549 10,750 0 1,458,851 4,602,408

0 _ 0 64,071 62,881 436,662

g 210,185 $ 10,750 $ 64,071 $ 1,625,064 $ 5874848
$ 0% 0% 0% 0% 212,930
0 0 0 0 182,430

0 0 0 0 1,477,704

0 0 0 0 3,523,836

0 0 0 2,714 1,921,320

0 0 0 2,714 7,318,220

$ 210,185 $ 10,750 $ 64,071 $ 1,627,778 $ __ 13.193,068
(CONCLUDED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1988

SPECIAL
TITLE | TITLE Vi EDUCATION TITLE Nl
REVENUES
Local sources:
Investment income $ 3,710 $ 0% 0% 0
Food services 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0
State sources:
Equalization 0 0 0 0
Other 0 0 0 0
Federal sources 12,002,661 275,882 2,438,934 329,639
Total Revenues $ 12,006,371 $ 275,882 $ 2,438,934 $ 329,639
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction:
Regular programs $ C$ 0% 0% 0
Special Programs O 0 192,388 0
Other instruction 10,074,312 274,051 212,845 225,598
Support services:
Student services 271,761 0 740,384 0
Instructional staff suppori 523,387 0 1,187,759 05,617
General administration 209,342 1,831 56,471 8,325
School administration 135,103 0 2,709 0
Business services 23,381 0 702 99
Plant services 4,316 0 27,756 0
Student transporiation services 0 0 17,920 0
Food services 0 0 0 0
Community service program 764,769 0 0 0
Total Expenditures $ 12,006,371 § 275882 $ 2,438,934 $ 329,639
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0% 0




Exhibit 2

TITLE IV FAMILY 8G STATE

TITLE XIX____(DRUG-FREE) ___ SUPPORT FUND
0% 03 0 % 0
0 0 0 0
0 960 17 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 1,017,585
468,545 324,769 580,928 0
468,545 $ 325,729 $ 580,945 $ 1,017,585
0% 0$ 3,470 $ 771,822
0 0 0 0
0 33,696 491,843 157,354
157,158 249,451 20,290 0
0 17,487 0 88,409
4,113 8,168 0 0
0 0 31,523 0
0 12,828 0 0
412 4,059 137,348 0
0 40 0 0
D 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
161,683 $ 325,729 $ 684,474 % 1,017,585
306,862 $ 0% (103,529) $ 0

(CONTINUED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

TITLE |

TITLE Vi

SPECIAL
EDUCATION

TITLE I

$ 0% 0% 0% 0
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
$ 0% 0% 0% 0
$ 0% 0% 0% 0
0 0 0 0
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Exhibit 2

TITLE IV FAMILY BG STATE
TITLE XIX (DRUG-FREE}) SUPPORT FUND

$ 0% 0% 0 % 0
0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

$ 0% 0% 0% 0
$ 306,862 $ 0% (103,529) $ 0
0 0 172,153 0

$ 306,862 $ 0% 68,624 % 0

(CONTINUED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30,1998

CHILD
ADULT VOCATIONAL NUTRITION
EDUCATION EDUCATION _ PROGRAM
REVENUES
Local sources.
Investment income $ 0% 0% 444278
Food services 0 0 2,319,329
Other 18,918 0 0
State sources.
Equalization 0 0 3,876,842
Other | 131,409 0 0
Federal sources 242 116_ 794 089 10,227,150
Total Revenues $ 302,443 3 794,088 § 16,867,599
EXPENDITURES
Current.
instruction:
Regulaf programs $ D % 0% 0
Special Programs 0 0 0
Other instruction 392,443 794,089 0
Support services:
Student services 0 0 0
tnstructional staff support 0 0 0
General agministration D D 0
School administration 0 0 0
Business services 0 0 233
Plant services 0 0 0
Student transporiation sefvices 0 0 0
Food services 0 0 17.801,714
Communily service program 0. 0 Ry
Total Expenditures - $ 302,443 $ 794,089 & 17,801,947
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% (934,348)
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Exhibit 2

JROTC  MISCELLANEOUS
CAREER  STATE/FEDERAL
GOALS 2000 JTPA ACADEMY GRANTS TOTAL

$ 0% 0$ 0$ 2,896 $ 450,884
0 0 0 0 2,319,329

0 0 0 0 19,895

0 0 0 1,725,864 5,602,706

0 0 0 2 557,336 3,706,330

~ 562,352 105,336 151,809 536,465 20.040.675
$ 562,352 $ 105,336 $ 151,809 §$ 4822561 $  41.139.819
$ 22,267 $ 0$ 0% 3792399 § 4589958
0 0 0 108,363 300,751

82,259 95,126 144,165 467,290 13,445,071

0 0 0 5,107 1,444,151

436,468 4,000 0 371,526 2,724,653

9,136 0 0 6,436 303,822

0 242 6,564 16,440 192,581

10,718 0 0 0 47,961

1,504 954 0 244,803 421,152

0 5014 1,080 46,242 70,206

0 0 0 0 17,801,714

0 0 0 0 764,769

$ 562,352 $ 105,336 $ 151,809 $ 5058606 $ 42,106,879
$ 0$ 0% 0% (236,045) $ (967 .060)

(CONTINUED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

CHILD
ADULT VOCATIONAL NUTRITION
EDUCATION EDUCATION PROGRAM

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers in $ 0% 0% 0
Operating transfers out (3,241) 0 0
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 0 0 3,208
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ (3.241) $ 0% 3,208

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER USES _ $ (3.241) § 0% (931,140)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,241 0 7,871,160
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 0 3 0% 6,940,020

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Exhibit 2

JROTC MISCELLANEOUS
CAREER STATE/FEDERAL

GOALS 2000 JTPA ACADEMY GRANTS TOTAL
$ 0% 0% 0$ 125,000 $ 125,000
0 0 0 0 (3,241)
0 0 0 0 3,208
$ 0% 0% 0$ 125,000 $ 124,967
$ 0$ 0% 0% (111,045) $ (842,093)
0 0 0 113,759 8,160,313

$ 0$ 0% 0% 2714 % 7,318,220

(CONCLUDED)



CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

REVENUES

Local sopurces:
Investment incerne

Federal sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction
General administration
School administration

Business services
Plant services

Community service programs
Total Expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiercy) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

Exhibit 3

o 3 o e ol e o o o o e e e e e ok l‘*iiiliTlTLE ]i*liiii‘il*i* o ol e o e ol ol e o ol oy o

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE

BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
0% 3,710 § 3,710
12,002,294 12,002 661 367
12,002,294 $ 12,006,371 § 4077
11,730,323 § 10,869,460 $ 860,863
271,971 209,342 62,629

0 135,103 (135,103)

0 23,381 (23,381)

0 4,316 (4,316)

0 764,769 (764,769)

12,002,294 § 12,006,371 § (4,077)
0% 0% 0
0 0 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT,
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
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For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 4
**i*iiti****ii*i**it**h*ﬁTITLE VI***************&*****#
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources 3 277,388 $ 275,882 $ (1,506)
Total Revenues 3 277,388 $ 275882 % (1,506}
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction $ 275542 % 274051 § 1,491
General administration 1,846 1,831 15
Total Expenditures $ 277,388 $ 275882 § 1,506
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 G
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 03 0 ¥ 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.




CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit

it*t****l**i***iiSPEClAL EDUCATION**i*ﬁiit*****i****

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 2797475 $ 2,438,934 $ (358,541)
Total Revenues $ 2797475 $ 2438934 § (358,541)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction $ 2431604 % 2333376 % 98,228
General administration 64,714 56,471 8,243
School administration 224 875 2,709 222,166
Business services 3,500 702 2,798
Plant services 37,802 27,756 . 10,046
Student transportation services 34,980 17.920 17,060
Total Expenditures $ 2797475 % 2438034 $ 358,541
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 0% 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.,
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget {GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 6
***itt*i*t*ii*iiti***il*iTITLE Il!i:'lrt***t*tl*****l*itit**t*
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 403,995 $ 329.639 § (74 ,356)
Total Revenues $ 403,995 $ 329,639 $ (74,356)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction 303,680 % 321,215 § 72 465
General administration 10,3156 8,325 1,880
Business services 0 09 {(99)
Total Expenditures 403,095 & 329639 $ 74.356
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 7
*ﬂ**ii*tﬁt*ii*ﬁ**tit**'rlTLE X|x*i***i*i*itt*it**i***li**
VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 312,249 § 468,545 $ 156.296
Total Revenues $ 312,249 $ 468,545 $ 156,296
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Instruction and support services:
Instruction 304,502 $ 157,158 $ 147,434
General administration 7,657 4,113 3,544
Plant services 0 412 (412)
Total Expenditures 312,249 § 161,683 $ 150,566
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 0% 306,862 % 306,862
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 4]

arwrr,

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 306,862 3 306,862

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 8

*Ii*ii*i**#t*h*ﬁi**TlTLE IV (DRUG_F RE E)*l e vl e e W e o e e e e o e

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Other 0% 960 $ 960
Federal sources 374, 306 324 769 (49 537)
Tota! Revenues 374,306 $ 325729 $ {48 577)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction 330333 % 300,634 $ 38,699
General administration 9 251 8,168 1,083
Business services 18,650 12,828 5822
Plant services 5072 4,059 1,013
Student transportation services 2,000 40 1,960
Total Expenditures 374.306 % 325,729 % 48 577
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveponrt, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 9
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VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Other $ 0% 17 $ 17
FFederal sources 759617 580,928 (178,689}
Total Revenues 3 750617 $ 580045 $ (178,672)
EXPENDITURES
Current;
Instruction and support services:
Instruction $ 702,617 % 495 313 % 207,304
Student services 0 20,290 (20,290)
School administration 50,000 31,623 18,477
Plant services 7.000 137.348 (130.348)
Total Expenditures $ 759617 $ 684474 $ 75,143
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% (103,629) $ {103,529)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 172,153 172,153
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 03 68624 3 68,624

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 10

*it**iit****ﬁ**ﬁ*lBG STATE F u N D*** vy i o e o e ol e e ke e o o e e e o

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
State sources:
Other $ 1,082,617 $ 1,017,585 $ (65,032)
Total Revenues $ 1,082,617 $ 1,017 585 $ (65,032}
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Regular programs $ 084,460 $ 929,176 $ 55,284
Instructional staff suppori 08,157 88,409 9,748
Total Expenditures $ 1,082 617 $ 1,017,585 $ 65,032
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 0% 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 11

***i*ii*iit*#t*t*ﬁADU LT E DUCAT' O N W oy oy e oy o e o o e o e e o e e

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:

Other $ 0% 18,918 18,918
State sources 131,409 131,409 0
Federal sources 242.116 242,116 0

Total Revenues 3 373525 % 392.443 18.918
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Instruction and support services:

Regular programs $ 368,469 § 392,443 (23,974)
General administration 5056 0 5,056

Total Expenditures $ 3735256 % 392,443 {(18,918)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0 % 0

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers out $ 0% {3241) % (3,241)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 0% (3,241) $ (3,241}
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND

OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES

AND OTHER USES $ 0$ (3.241) § (3,241)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 3,241 3,241

FUND BALANCES; AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 0 $ 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

REVENUES
Federal sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

Exhibit 12

srensssria st Y OCATIONAL EDUCATION*#####ksssas

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
$ 813,564 $ 794,089 % (19,475)
$ 813,664 % 794 089 $ (19,475)
$ 813,564 % 794,089 3 19,475
$ 813,564 $ 794089 $ 19,475
$ 0% 0% 0
0 0 0

$ 0 o 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.,
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget {GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 13

il‘i**t*i*****t*c H | LD N UTR'TI ON PROG RAM*IIE*******

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Local sources:
Investment income $ 400,000 444278 % 44,278
Food services 2,090,000 2,319,329 229,329
State sources
Equalization 3,655,755 3,876,842 221,087
Federal sources 8.675.000 10,227,150 1,662,150
Total revenues $ 14.820.755 16,867,599 § 2.046,844
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Food services $ 17,097,000 17,801,947 § (704 ,947)
Total expenditures $ 17,097,000 17,801,947 $ (704,947)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (2,276,245) $ (934,348) $ 1,341,897
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in $ 735,000 $ 0% (735,000)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 0 _ 3,208 3.208
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 3 735000 $ 3,208 % (731,792)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES $ (1,5641,245) § (931,140) & 610,105
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,801,088 7.871,160 6,070,062

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 259,853 § 6,940,020 $ 6,680,167

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 14

***i**it*******l*t*GOALS 20 00** e ol i e o o o e e o e ol e o

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET  ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federal sources $ 617,752 % 562,352 $ {(55,400)
Total Revenues $ 617,752 % 562,352 % (65,400)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Instruction $ 594,981 % 540,004 $ 53,987
General administration 10,549 9136 1,413
Business services 10,718 10,718 0
FPlant services 1,504 1,504 0
Total Expenditures $ 617,752 $ 562,352 $ 55,400
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 03 0% D

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 15
*!**t****l*i**l*tiit*tt**JTPA*i e i gk ol ol o ol oy e ol o ok ol ol e o o ek ek
VARIANCE
~ FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)
REVENUES
Federa! sources $ 113,506 $ 106,336 $ {8.170)
Total Revenues S 113,506 $ 105,336 % (8.170)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services :
Instruction $ 100,708 $ 00126 $ 1,582
School administration 300 242 58
Plant services 0 954 {954)
Student transportation services 12,498 5,014 7,484
Total Expenditures $ 113,506 $ 105,336 $ 8,170
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0% 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0D

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -

Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 16

***************JROTC CAREER ACADEMY**************

VARIANCE
- FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE)}
REVENUES
Federal sources d 17,297 $ 151,809 % 134,512
Total Revenues 3 17.297 $ 151,800 $ 134,512
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services :
Instruction $ 17,297 § 144,165 $ (126,868)
School administration 0 6,564 (6.564)
Student transportation services 0 1,080 (1,080)
Total Expenditures $ 17,297 $ 151,800 $ (134.512)
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ 0% 0$ 0
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $ 0% 0% 0

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual - Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 17

*MISCELLANEOUS STATE/FEDERAL GRANTS****

VARIANCE
FAVORABLE
BUDGET ACTUAL {(UNFAVORABLE}
REVENUES
Local sources:
Investment income $ 3,000 2,896 (104)
State sources:
Equalization 1,767,219 1,725,864 (41,355)
Other 2,656,604 2,557,336 (99,268)
Federal sources 605,592 536.465 (69,127)
Total Revenues $ 5032415 4. 822 561 (209,.854)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction and support services:
Regular programs $ 4,936,584 4,744 685 191,869
General administration 6,627 6,436 191
School administration 24,056 16,440 7,616
Business services 144 0 144
Piant services 248,121 244 803 3,318
Student transporiation services 55,680 46 242 9,338
Total Expenditures 3 5271,112 5,058 606 212 506
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES $ (238,697) $ (236,045) $ 2.652
OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Operating transiers in $ 125.000 125000 $ 0
Total other financing sources {(uses) $ 125,000 125000 $ 0
EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES AND
OTHER SOURCES OVER EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES | $ (113,697) $ (111,045) § 2,652
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 113,759 113,759 0

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR

$ 62§  2714% 26562

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS

The nonexpendable trust fund is used to account for assets of the School Board held in trust, for which the principal
may not be spent.,

Agency funds are used to account for assets held by the Board in a fiduciary capacity. These funds are custodial in
nature and do not involve measurement of results of operations.

The following activitics are reporied in this section:
» (Caddo Educational Excellence Nonexpendable Trust Fund
 School Activity Agency Funds
* Central Office Concession Agency Fund

* Deferred Compensation Plan Agency Fund
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CADDQO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Balance Sheet - All Trust and Agency Funds
June 30, 1998 Exhibit 18

NON EXPENDABLE
_ TRUST AGENCY FUNDS
CADDO SCHQQOL CENTRAL DEFERRED
EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITY OFFICE COMPENSATION
EXCELLENCE FUNDS CONCESSION PLAN TOTAL
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 566,839 $ 2600772 $ 2238 % 0 % 3,169,849
Investments 2,325,000 314,544 0 0 2,639,544
Receivables 59,163 0 0 9] 59,163
Total assels $ 2951002 $ 29015316 § 2238 $ 0 § 5,868 556
Liabilities and Fund Balance
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 0 § 40,518 § 1454 § 0 § 41,972
Deposits due olhers 0 2,874,798 784 G 2875582
Tota! liabilities $ O $ 2815316 § 2238 § 0 % 2.917.554
Fund Balance:
Reserved for instructional
enhancement $ 2951002 % 0 $ 0 $ 0 § 2.951.002
Total fund balance $ 2951002 $ O $ 0 $ 0 $ 2.951,002
Total liabilities and
fund balance ] 2951002 $ 29815316 $ 2238 % 0 % 5,668,556

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL. BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Statement of Changes In Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998 Exhibit 19
Balance, Balance,
July 1, 1997 Additions Deductions June 30, 1958

**SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUND*****

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,183,238 § 8,902,017 $ 8,484,483 % 2,600,772
Investments 376,319 38,697 100,472 314,544
$ 2558557 § 8940714 $ 85684955 § 2,915316
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 22685 $ 40518 § 22685 % 40,518
Deposits due others 2,536,872 8,900,196 8,662,270 2,874,798
$ 2,5569557 $ 89040714 % 8584955 § 2,915 316
*m*CENTRAL OFFICE CONCESSION FUND*****
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,001 3% 23102 % 26865 § 2,238
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 5149 § 1454 § 5149 § 1,454
Deposits due others 852 21,648 21,716 784

$ 6,001 3 23102 $ 26,865 3 2,238

(CONTINUED)
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

Combining Statement of Changes In Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1988 Exhibit 19
Balance, Balance,
July 1, 1997 Additions Deductions June 30, 1998

*DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN*****

ASSETS
Investments $ 3818191 § 0 3 3818191 $ 0
LIABILITIES
Deferred compensation payable $ 3,818,191 % 0 $ 3,818,191 $ 0
i**t*ﬁiii*iiALL AGENCY FUNDS***&********
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,189,239 § 8925119 $ 8,511,348 $ 2,603,010
Investments 4,194 510 38,697 3,918,663 314,544
Total assets 3 6,383,740 J 8963816 % 12430011 $ 2,917 554
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 27834 % 41,972 § 27834 % 41,972
Deferred compensation payable 3,818,191 0 3,818,191 0
Deposits due others 2,537,724 8,921, 844 8,683,986 2,875,582
Total liabilities $ 6,383,749 § 8963816 3 12430011 $ 2,917,554

(CONCLUDED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
Schedule of Changes in Deposits Due Others

For the Year Ended June 30, 1993 Exhibit 20

Balance, Balance,

SCHOOL Beginning Additions Deductions _ Ending

Alexander Special Education 71556 % 12,258 $ 12,683 % 6,830
Arthur Circle Elementary 20,266 67,575 68,811 19,030
Atkins Elementary 4,750 29,430 29,043 5137
Barrett Elementary 1,203 23,702 20,802 4,103
Bethune Middle 5,990 33,013 31,293 7,710
Donnie Bickham Middle 14,338 135,291 136,184 13,445
Blanchard Elementary 31,341 54,659 45,307 40,5693
Broadmoor Elementary 44,352 201,695 207,399 38,648
Byrd High 188,425 743,716 737,069 195,072
Caddo Career Cemter 43,509 230,530 162,836 111,203
Caddo Exceptional 2,711 9,005 6,904 4812
Caddo Heights Elementary 1,007 25,691 22,255 4443
Caddo Magnet High 120,225 638,890 661,036 08,079
Caddo Middle Magnet 56,272 237,525 231,442 62,355
Captain Shreve High 226,404 398,127 423,594 200,937
Central Elementary 22,790 13,289 89,634 26,445
Cherokee Park Elementary 10,797 22,625 17,670 15,752
Claiborne Elementary 13,251 40,462 44,848 8,865
J. 8. Clark Middle 53,405 99,619 103,280 40,744
Creswell Elementary 10,975 46,010 42,410 14,575
Eden Gardens Fundamental 36,604 83,495 72,233 47,956
Eighty-First Street ECE 7,754 33,685 31,282 10,057
Fairfield Elementary 3,696 18,951 16,637 6,110
Fair Park High 43,242 246,135 255,169 34,208
Forest Hill Elementary 30,773 100,169 87,589 43,353
Green Qaks High 23,179 161,804 151,004 33,979
George P. Hendrix Elementary 4 065 11,768 9,244 6,589
Hamilton Terrace Learning Ctr. 41,632 26,735 49,586 18,781
Herndon Middle Magnet 44,997 222,675 210,709 56,063
Hillsdale Elementary 15,392 23,148 21,305 17,235
Hollywood Middle 22,936 56,996 55,945 23,987
Hosston Elementary 1,794 11,405 0,207 3,092
Huntington High 138,120 461,604 435,867 163,857
Ingersoll Elementary 11,757 14,848 11,767 14,838
J. B. Harville SAFS 174 10,425 9,857 742
Judson Fundamental Elementary - 14,995 107,149 103,484 18,660
Keithville Elem/Middle 14,641 158,108 149,850 22,899
| akeshore Elementary 14,735 33,171 30,968 16,938
Laurel Street Early Childhood 1,198 10,711 9,080 2,829
Linear Middle 8,561 45,431 37,527 16,465
Linwood Middle 24,132 91,466 84,5695 31,003
Midway Middle School 18,051 53,5631 53,570 18,012

(CONTINUVED)
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SCHOOL

Mooretown ECE
Mooringsport Elementary
North Caddo High

North Highlands Eiementary
Northside Elementary
Northwood High

Oak Park Elementary

Oak Terrace Special Ed.

Oil City Elem/Middle

Pine Grove Elementary
Queensborough Elementary
Ridgewood Middie
Riverside Elementary
JROTC

Shreve Island Elernentary
Newton Smith Elementary
South Highlands Elementary
Southern Hills Elementary
Southwood High

A.C. Steere Elementary

E. B. Williams Stoner Hill Elem.

Summerfield Elementary
Summer Grove Elementary
Sunset Acres Elementary
Timmons Elementary
Turner Elem/Middle
University Elementary
Vivian Elem/Middle

Walnut Hill Elem/Middle

B. T. Washington High
Werner Park Elementary
West Shreveport Eziementary
Westwood Elementary
woodlawn High

Youree Drive Middie

TOTAL

CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD

Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHOOL ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND

Schedule of Changes in Deposits Due Others

For the Year Ended June 30, 1898 Exhibit 20
Balance, Balance,
Beginning Additions Deductions Ending
$ 12,150 17,976 15,5623 14,603
14,846 42,621 - 41 697 15,770
3,995 214,155 190,966 27,184
7,081 54,712 51,955 0,838
0,326 27,307 27,077 9,556
38,698 362,812 343,684 57,926
6,228 33,401 31,507 8,122
3,827 13,192 11,786 5,233
10,521 37,810 34.080 14,241
10,281 22,828 15,958 17,151
6,489 36,443 33,817 9,115
18,792 152 423 148 157 23,0608
9,567 70,119 68,966 10,720
3,622 7,780 8,805 2,597
9,650 87,575 89,615 7,610
2,152 27,380 26,398 3,134
39,249 128,485 133,745 33,989
21,776 41,931 41,663 22,044
162,184 738,736 734,009 156,911
21,187 54,261 48 417 27,031
9,309 63,838 57,236 15,911
28,943 72,628 61,498 40,073
13,108 68,134 66,862 14,380
15,810 44,579 33,936 26,453
11,586 25,097 23,130 13,553
200,516 170,855 184,738 186,733
23,822 100,723 106,683 17,862
15,825 88,904 77,829 26,900
166,770 276,128 249 877 193,021
41,821 188,844 181,221 49 444
15,569 30,853 22,980 23,442
14,022 48,815 45,831 17,006
11,656 38,325 39,785 10,196
67,685 238,245 223,022 §2,908
97,125 225,859 179,132 143,852
$ 2536872 I 8,900,196 $ 8662270 3 2,874,798
{CONCLUDED)

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP

The general fixed assets account group records the fixed assets of the School Board which are used in governmental
fund-type opcrations.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -

BY SOURCE
June 30, 1998

General Fixed Assels
Land
Buildings and improvements

Furniture and equipment
Transportation equipment

Total general fixed assets

Investment in gencral fixed assets by source:
Capital project funds
General fund
Child nutrition fund
Federal funds
Donations
State funds

Total investment in general fixed assets

Exhibit 21

$ 5,168,136

150,814,058
39,713,765
18,337,769

$ 214,033,728

$ 161,742,606

33,718,841
4,561,350
8,620,945
1,308,918
4,081,068

$ 214,033,728

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
Exhibit 22

June 30, 1998

Buildings and Furniture and Transportation

Function and Activity Total Land Improvements Equipment Equipment
Instruction: -
High schools $ 66,300,952 $ 1,448,280 $ 59,083,959 § 5,758,694 $ 0
Middle schools 32,451,969 849,608 27,491,346 4,111,015 0
Etermentary/Middle schools 26,670,367 774,501 22,879,590 3,016,276 0
Elementary schools 47,135,118 1,069,848 31,104 485 14,960,785 0
$ 172,558,406 ¢ 4142256 % 140569,380% 27846770 % 0
General and school
administration 9,532,340 66,603 7,566,752 1,823,960 75,125
Piant and maintenance 7,968,423 059,377 2,671,407 4,227,329 110,310
Food service equipment 5,781,255 0 0 5,791,255 0
Transporiation 18,183,304 0 65,519 24 451 18,152,334
Total general fixed assets $ 214033728 ¥ 5168136 § 150814058 $§ 39,713,765 $ 13,33?,?69

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS -

BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY
Exhibit 23
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998
Function and Activity July 1, 1997 Additions Retirements June 30, 1998
Instruction:; |

High schools $ 63,975,536 $ 2,333,594 % 8,178 § 66,300,952
Middle schools 31,083,064 1,407,888 38,083 32,451,969
Elementary/Middle schools 26,277,526 392,841 0 26,670,367
Elementary schools 43,468,651 3,951,727 285,260 47,135,118
$ 164,804,777 § 8,086,050 $ 332,421 % 172,558,406
General and school administration 8,605,669 938,064 11,393 0,632,340
Plant and maintenance 7,800,419 171,189 3,185 7,968,423
Food service equipment 5785021 6,234 0 5,791,255
Transporiation 17,351,186 832,118 0 18,183,304
Total $ 204347072 % 10,033,655 $ 346999 $ 214,033,728

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT ACCOUNT GROUP

The gencral Jong-term debt account group represents a summary of the general long-term obligations of the Board.
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CADDO PARISH SCHOOL BOARD
Shreveport, Louisiana
Exhibit 24
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT

For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

Debt Service
Fund
_July 41,1997 Additions =~ Payments  Operations _June 30, 1998

-

Amount avaitable in Debt Service Fund $ 1,098,679 $ 0% 0% 1384634 § 2,483,213
Amount to be provided for retirement

of long-term debt 25,691,421 0 2,705,000 (1,384,634) 21,601,787
Amount to be provided for claims

and judgments 568,415 0 214,632 0 353,883
Amount to be provided for

compensated absences 13,612,585 3,302,825 2958312 0 13,957,098

$ 40971000 $ 3,302,825 $ 2877844 $ 0 $ 38,385 881

Long-term obligations payable:

Bonds payable $ 26,790,000 ¢ 0% 27058000 % 0 $ 24,085,000
Claims and judgments payable 568,415 0 214,532 0 353,883
Compensated ahsences payable 13,612,685 3,302,825 2,958,312 0 13,957,098

$ 40971000 % 3,302,825 $ 5877844 3 0 $ 38395081

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

GENERAL Exhibit 25

Schedule of Compensation Paid Board Members
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

The schedule of compensation paid to the Schoo! Board members s presented in compliance with House Concurrent
Resolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legislature. Compensation of the School Board members
is included n the general administrative expenditures of the general fund. In accordance with Louistana Revised
Statute 17:56, the School Board members have elected the monthly payment method of compensation. Undcr this
mcthod, cach member of the School Board reccives $800 per month, the vice-presidents reecives $850 per month,
and the president receives $900 per month for performing the duties of office. The extra $50 and $100 per month
for the vice-presidents and the president is paid to each only in the event cach attends the monthly exccutive
commiticc mecting,

Michacl J. Thibodeaux, President $ 10,100
Willic D. Burton, 1st Vice-President 9 800
Jerry Tim Brooks, 2nd Vice-President 10,200
Ron Adams 9.950
Judy Boykin 9.600
Miles Hitchcock 9,600
Mark Milam 9,600
Alvin Mims 9,600
Mike Powell 10,300
Mildred B. Pugh 9,600
Johnny Vance, Jr. 9,600
Sybil Walker | 9.600

TOTAL - $117.550
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on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures
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Tim Green, CPA
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Independent Accountants' Report
On Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures

Board Members
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Caddo Parish School
Board, solely to assist the Caddo Parish School Board in evaluating management's assertion about
the effectiveness of the School Board's compliance with Act 743 of 1995 concerning the Caddo
Educational Excellence Fund (a nonexpendable trust fund of the Caddo Parish School Board) for the
year ended June 30, 1998, included in representation letter dated September 23, 1998. These agreed-
upon procedures were performed in accordance with standards established by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of
the Caddo Parish School Board. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency
of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or
for any other purpose.

PROCEDURES

Pursuant 1o LSA-R.S, 4:552

Randomly select three months collections and determine that the following two statements
are true:

)

1. An admission fee was collected of up to $3 for each passenger boarding or embarking
upon a river boat in the parish.

2. 12v% of the admission fee revenue collected within the parish of Caddo was allocated
to the Caddo Educational Excellence Fund.

Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Certified Public Accountants and
Amencan Institute of Certilied Publie Accountants Divasion tor CPA Firms




Board Members

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Page 2 of 4

PROCEDURES

Pursuant to LSA-R.S. 17:408.1 A

Test the fund's records to ascertain that the following five statements are true:

1. The Caddo Educational Excellence Fund was established. |
2. The fund is a permanent trust fund.

3. The bank account is in the official reposttory of the Caddo Parish School Board.
4. The account was held and invested on behaltf of the Caddo Parish School Board.

5. The investment income was withdrawn by the Caddo Parish School Board only during
January of the calendar year.

Pursuant to LLSA-R.S.17:408.1 B

| Test the fund's records to ascertain that the following two statements are true:

1. The monies were invested in the same manner as monies in the state general fund are
invested.

2. The amount of earnings were kept account of separately from the fund principal.
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Board Members

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, L.ouisiana

Page 3 of 4

PROCEDURES

Pursuant to LSA-R.S. 17:408.1 C

Randomly select and test twenty-five disbursements (assuming there are this number of
disbursements during the period ended June 30, 1998) from the fund to determine that the
expenditures complied with the following statute stipulation:

The earnings were expended solely for the purposes of instructional enhancement as defined
below:

Enhancement may include

®  Provision for materials and supplies, including computers and other techno-
logical upgrades:

® Training for students, faculty, and administrators on the use of materials

®  Professional development of teachers

® Establishment of exemplary programs of instruction

Enhancement may not include

® Costs of additional administrators

® Increases in salaries or benefits for employees, or maintenance or custodial costs

Determine that the following statement is true:

The audit of the Caddo Parish School Board specifically addresses compliance with the
provisions of Act 743 of 1995.




Board Members

Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Page 4 of 4

FINDINGS

1.  Effective July 1, 1997, the method of calculating fees to be assessed from the two river boats
in Caddo Parish were changed under two contractual agreements entered into by the river
boats and the City of Shreveport and the Caddo Parish Commission. Even though the
School Board began accepting revenues calculated under these contractual agreements in

April 1998, the School Board chose not to participate as a party in either of the contractual
agrecments,

School Board personnel have performed an analysis to determine the effects of the changes
in the calculation of the fees, specifically, the change in the amount of revenue received by
the CEEF fund. According to this analysis, the calculation under the two contractual
agreements will equal or exceed the amount of revenue received by the CEEF fund under
the calculation specified in the statute. In addition, because the School Board was not a
party to the contracts between the river boats and the City of Shreveport and the Caddo
Parish Commission, it i1s the opinion of management and legal counsel of the School Board
that the School Board will not be prohibited from reverting to the calculation as specified
in LSA-R.S. 4:552 in the event that the calculations specified in the contractual agreements
cease to be beneficial to the CEEF fund.

P

il

1

We were not engaged to, and did not, perform an examination, the objective of which would be the
expression of an opinion on management's assertion. Accordingly, we do not express such an

opinion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention
that would have been reported to you.,

This report is intended solely for the use of management and the Board of Caddo Parish School
Board and should not be used by those who have not agreed to the procedures and taken

responsibility for the sufficiency of the procedures for their purposes. However, this report 1s a
matter of public record and its distribution 1s not limited.

/ylé&h; M &747; N

Allen, Green & Company, LLLP

Monroe, LL.ouisiana
September 23, 1998
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Compliance with Single Audit Act
Amendments of 1996
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

LUinder provisions of state law, this
renott 1s & public document. A
copy of tha report has been submit-
fed to the audited, or reviewed,
entity and oiher appropriate public
ofticials. The report is available for
npubiic inspection at the Baton
Fouae otfice of the Legislative Audi-
tor and, where anpropriate, at the
office of the parish clerk of court.
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Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Board Mcmbecrs
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

We have audited the financial statements and the combining and (ndividual fund and account group statements and
schedules of Caddo Parish School Board, Shreveport, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1998, and have
1ssucd our report thereon dated September 23, 1998. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards and the standards applicable (o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As pari of obtamning rcasonable assurance about whether the School Board's financial statements are free of material
musstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statcment amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly,
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required 1o
be reported under Government Auditing Standards, which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as item 98-F1.

Inicrnal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal control over financial reporting in order
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to
provide assurance on the mnternal control over financial reporting. However, we noted a certain matter involving the
internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable
condiions involve matlers coming Lo our attention relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the
nternal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could adversely affect the School Board's ability 1o record,
process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements.
A reportable condition 1s described 1n the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 98-F2.

A malcrial weakness 1s a condition 1n which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components
does not reduce to a relatively low leve] the risk that misstatements 1 amounts that would be matcrial in relation to the
fiancial statecments being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely peniod by employees in the normal
coursc of performung their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would
not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would
nol necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that arc also considered to be matcrial weaknesses. However, we
belicve that the reportable condition referenced above 1s not a material weakness.

Member American Instipute of Certified Pobplic Acoountants, Scciely of Lowsiana Cortitied Pubhic Accountants and
Amencan Institute of Certthed Public Accountants Division tor CPA Firms




e

Board Mcmbecers
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Management Letier ltems

We noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting which we have reported to management
of the School Board in a scparate lcttcer dated September 23, 1998, included later in this report.

This report is intended for the information of the Board, management and federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entilics. However, this report 1s a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Aller frocr T Crgpny, LLf

ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP
Monroc, Louisiina

Scptember 23, 1998
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Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to
Each Major Program and Internal Control Over
Comphance in Accordance with OMB Circular No, A-133

Board Members
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Loulsiana

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Caddo Parish School Board, Shreveport, Louisiana, with the types of comphiance
rcquircments described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular No. A-133 Compliance
Supplement that arc applicable to cach of 1ts major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1998. The School
Board's major fcderal programs are identificd in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule
of findings and qucstioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable
to cach of 1ts major federal programs 1s the responsibility of the School Board's management. Our responsibihity 1s to
express an opinion on the School Board's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of comphance in accordance with gencrally accepiled auditing standards; the standards
applicabic to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssucd by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular No. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
Thosc standards and OMB Circular No. A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonablc assurance
about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
matcrial effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a (est basis, cvidence about the
School Board's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. ' We belicve that our audit provides a reasonable basis {or our opinion. Our audit docs not provide
a legal determination on the School Board's compliance with those requirements.

In cur opimion, the School Board complicd, in all material respects, with the requircments referred to above that arc
applicable 1o cach of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 1998,

Internal Control Qver Comphance

The management of the School Board 1s responsible for establishing and mamntaining effective internal control over
compliance with requircments of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs, In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the School Board's internal control over compliance with requirements that could
have a dircet and material effect on a major {ederal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the

purposc of expressing our opimion on comphiance and to test and reporl on internal control over compliance 1n
accordance with OMB Circular No. A-133.
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Board Members
Caddo Parish School Board

Shreveport, Louisiana

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal

control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness 1s a condition 1n which the design or operation of
one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance

with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major
federal prograrn being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance
and 1ts operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group
statements and schedules of the School Board, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1998, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 23, 1998. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general-
purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules
taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by OMB Circular No. A-133 and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial
statements and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose financial statements and the
combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the general-purpose financial statements and the combining and individual fund
and account group statements and schedules taken as a whole.

This report is intended for the information of the Board, management and federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP

Monroe, Louisiana
September 23, 1998



Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ CFDA Pass-Through
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME Number Grantor No.
CASH FEDERAL AWARDS

United States Department of Agriculture
Passed Through Ender York, Inc. of Herdon, Virgima:

Food Distribution (Cash in Licu of Commodities) 10.550 N/A
Passcd Through Louisiana Department of Education:

School Breakfast Program 10.553 N/A

National School Lunch Program 10.555 N/A

Summer Food Program for Children 10.539 N/A

Total United States Department of Agriculture

United States Department of Education
Dircet Programs:

Impact Aid (Title VIII) 84.041 N/A
Passcd Through Louisiana Department of Education:
Adult Education - State Grant Program 84.002 EX-05-3560-8426-8425
Title 1 Grants to Local Educational Agencics 84.010 98-1ASA-09, 97-1ASA-09
06-043-9
Special Education;
Grants 1o States (Part B) 84.027 98-FT-09
Preschool Grants 84.173 98-PF-09
Vocational Education:
Basic Grants to States 84.046 28-98-09-2BG
28-98-09-2B
Tech-Prep Education 84.243 28-98-09-03PE
Single Parent Tapsis & Dircet 84.048A 28-98-9-258P
Sex Equity 84.048A 28-98-09-2SE
Innovative Education Program Strategics - Title VI 84.298 08-1ASA-09
Title 1 (Eisenhower Professional Development) 84.281 98-1ASA-09
Title 1V (Safe and Drug-Free Schools - State Grant) 84.186 98-IASA-09
Goals 2000
State and Local Education Systematic
Improvement Grants 84.276 N/A
Even Start - Migrant Education 84.214 08-1ASA-9ES
Education for Homeless Children and Youth
(McKimney Homeless Assistance) 84 196A 98-IASA-2898HI109]
Red River Partners at Work 84 278E V278E70017-98
Passed Through Louisiana State University:
Urban Community Scrvice (Project Achicve) 84.252A N/A

Total United States Department of Education

L

Expenditurcs

$ 814,428

1,848,796
7,180,653
370,773

10,214,650

4,506

242,116
12,002,661

2,082,506
356,428

554,029

159,028
57,237
0,583
275,882
329,639
324,769

562,352
146,180

50,918
166,117

77,519

17,401,470

(Continucd)
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

FEDERAL GRANTOR/ CFDA Pass-Through
PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM NAME Number Grantor No. Expenditures
CASH FEDERAL AWARDS

United States Department of Health and Human Services
Passcd Through the Louisiana Department of Education:
Child Care and Development Block Grant

(Starting Points Preschool) 93.575 N/A $ 209453

Title XIX 93.714 N/A 161,683
Passcd Through the Office of Family Support:

Family Support Act - Projcct Independence 93.781 CFMS-507968 684.474

Total United States Department of
Health and Human Services 1.055.610

United States Department of Labor
Passed Through the City of Shreveport:
Job Training Partnership Act (JTPA) 17.250 E8009, ER010, 105,336
E8011, PY-97-70-13-11
K-7001, B-7002

United States Department of Defense Direct Programs:
Departiment of The Army

JROTC NONE N/A 151,809
ROTC NONE N/A 747,113
Flood Control Projects 12,106 N/A 864
Total United Statecs Department of Defense 899,786

Other Cash Federal Awards
Payment in Licu of Taxes NONE N/A 26,261
Total Cash Federal Awards $29.703.113

NONCASH FEDERAL AWARDS

United States Department of Agriculture
Passed Through Louisiana Departinent of Agriculture and Forestry:

Food Distribution (Commaoditics) 10.550 N/A 12.500
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS $29,713,613
{Concluded)




Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal awards programs
of the Caddo Parish School Board, Shreveport, Louisiana. The Caddo Parish School Board (the "School Board")
reporting entity 1s defined 1in note 1 to the School Board's gencral-purpose financial statements. Federal awards
received directly from federal agencics, as well as federal awards passed through other government agencies, 1s

included on the schedule.

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the modified accrual basis of
accounting, which 1s described in note 1 to the School Board's general-purpose financial statements.

NOTE 3 - RELATIONSHIP TO GENERAL-PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Federal awards expenditures are reported in the School Board's general-purpose financial statements as follows:

Federal Sources

General Fund $ 878254
Special Revenue Funds:
Title 1 12,002 661
Title VI 275,882
- Special Education 2,438,934
Title 1) 329,639
Title XIX 161,683
Title IV (Drug-Free) 324,769
Family Support 684,474
Adult Education 242,116
Vocational Education 794,089
Child Nutrition Program 10,227,150
Goals 2000 562,352
JTPA 105,336
JROTC Carcer Academy 151,809
Miscellancous State/Federal Grants 536,465
Total $29.715.613
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 1998

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported tn the accompanying schedule agree with the amounts reported in the related federal financial
reports except for changes made to reflect amounts 1n accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

NOTE § - MATCHING REVENUES

For those funds that have matching revenues and state funding, federal expenditures were determined by deducting
matching revenues from total expenditores.

NOTE 6 - NONCASH PROGRAMS

The commodities received, which are noncash revenues, are valued using prices provided by the United States
Department of Agriculture.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
As of and For The Year Ended June 30, 1998

PART I - Summary of the Auditors’ Results

Financial Statement Audit

1. The type of audit report 1ssucd was ungualified.

ii.  There was a reportable condition required to be disclosed by Government Auditing Standards i1ssucd by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

The reportable condition disclosed was not considered a material weakness as defined by Government
Auditing Standards.

m.  There was an instance of noncompliance considered material, as defined by the Government Auditing
Standards, to the financial statements.

Audit of Federal Awards

1Iv.  There were no reportable conditions required to be disclosed by OMB Circular No. A-133,
V. The typc of report the auditor issued on compliance of major federal awards was unqualified.

vi.  The audit disclosed no audit findings which the auditor is required to report under OMB Circular No. A-133,
Scction .510(a).

vil.  The major federal awards are:

CFDA #84.010 Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencics
CFDA #93 781 Family Support Act - Project Independence
CFDA #84.046 Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States

Cluster (as defined by OMB Circular No. A~133 Provisional Compliance Supplement)
Special Education Cluster

CFDA #84.027 Special Education - Grants to States (IDEA, Part B)
CFDA #84.173 Special Education - Preschool Grants (IDEA, Preschool)

v, Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs as defined in OMB Circular
No. A-133, Section .520(b) was $891,468.

ix.  The auditee does not qualily as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular No. A-133, Scction .5330.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

PART Il - Findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance with
Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards:

Reference # and title: 98-F1 Collateralization of Bank Deposits

Entity-wide or program/department specific: This comment applics entity-wide.

Criteria or specific requirement: Lousiana Revised Statutes Title 39 - Public Finance addresscs collateralization
rcquirements for public funds. Specifically, LSA-R.S. 39:1218 and LSA-R.S. 39:1225 require that fiscal agents of a
depostting authority, such as the School Board, provide sccurity at all times equal to onc hundred percent of the amount
of collected funds. The sccuritics should be of the types outlined in LSA-R.S. 39:1221.

Condition found: At June 30, 1998, the School Board had $64,725,072 on deposit with their fiscal agent. Collateral
pledged by the fiscal agent as of June 30, 1998 totaled $63,471,903. This left $1,253,169 of the School Board's
deposits with the fiscal agent uncollateralized.

Proper perspective for judging the prevalence and consequences: The School Board had total deposits of
$66,863,014 at June 30, 1998. $64,725,072 of this total was on deposit with the fiscal agent and was comprised mostly
of the School Board's main accounts. The remaining $2,137 942 was on dcposit at a total of six other area banks and
was compriscd mainly of school activity funds.

Possible asserted effect (cause and effect):

Cause: Unknown.
Effect: The School Board is in violation of state statute concerning pledged collateral.

Recommendations to prevent future occurrences: Pledged collateral should be monitored by the School Board to
cnsure that all funds are collateralized in accordance with state statutes.

10



Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

PART Il - Findings related to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance with
Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards:

Reference # and Title: 08-F2 Fixed Asset Listing

Entity-wide or program/department specific: This comment applics entity-wide.

Criteria or specific requirement: Louisiana Revised Statute 24:515(B)(1) requires that public entitics maintain
records of fixed assets. A good interal control over this process is to assign unique numbers Lo cach asset for
identification purposcs.

Condition found: Three items selected from the School Board's comprehensive asset listing to be located at a school
could not be located while on site. Twelve items selected while on site could not be traced back Lo the comprehensive
fixed assct listing,.

Proper perspective for judging the prevalence and consequences: Forly items were selected to trace from the listing
io the site. The three items not locatled while tracing from the listing to the site represent 7.5% of those 40 assets
sclected. An additional 40 items were picked while on site to trace back to the listing. The 12 items sclected to trace
from the sitc 1o the listing represent 30% of those 40 selected. 12.5% (five items) had similar or 1dentical assct
descriptions on the comprehensive listing, however, no serial number was listed 1n order to venty that the assets were
the same. The School Board utilizes serial numbers as a unique number for each assct for identification purposes.
Another 7.5% (three items) had assets with similar descriptions on the comprehensive histing, however, the assets hsted
were assigned serial numbers which did not match the scrial numbers of the items picked on site. The remaining 10%
(four items) had no asscts with a similar description on the comprehensive listing. All twelve of the items appear to be
valucd above the capitalization threshold of the School Board.

Possible asserted effect (cause and effect):

Cause: Unknown.

Effect: The School Board can not positively identify some fixed assets which weakens internal control over the
asscls.

Recommendations to prevent future occurrences: The School Board should take the necessary steps to ensure that

all items on the hist are located at the site indicated on the comprehensive listing and that all assets owned by the School
Board which arc above the capitalization threshold arc on the listing,

As a practical consideration, the School Board should consider utilizing asset numbers 1o identify fixed assets instead
of sertal numbers. When School Board personnel enter new assets into the {fixed asset software, an assct number is a
required ficld. A serial number 1s not required. Also, assct numbers arc frequently less complex than serial numbers.
Tags which display the asset number and identify the asscl as School Board property could be attached to asscts for both
identification and as a theft deterrent. With the availability of bar code tags, use of tags could cven make the annual
nventory process faster and casier.

1]



Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Other Information

The information in the following section concerns management's actions or intentions concerning prior and current-year
audit findings and is required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular No. A-133. This information
has been prepared by the management of the Caddo Parish Schoot Board. Management accepts full responsibility, as
required by OMB Circular No. A-133, for the accuracy of the information, This information has not been audited by
the auditors except as required by OMB Circular No. A-133 Section 500(¢), and accordingly, no opinion is expressed.
Section 300(e) requires the auditor to follow-up on prior audit {indings, perform procedures 10 assess the rcasonablencss
of the summary schedule of prior audit findings prepared by the auditee, and report, as a current-year audit finding when
the auditor concludes that the summary schedule of prior audit findings materially misrepresents the status of any prior
audit {inding.

12




Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
June 30, 1998

No findings and questioned costs were reported for the year ended June 30, 1997, Accordingly, there are no prior iiems
for which the status need be reported.

13
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Corrcctive Action Plan for Current-Year Findings and Questioned Cost
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

Reference # and title: 98-F1 Collateralization of Bank Deposits

Condition: At Junc 30, 1998, the School Board had $64,725,072 on deposit with their fiscal agent. Collateral
pledged by the {iscal agent as of Junc 30, 1998 totaled $63,471,903. This left $1,253,169 of the School Board's
deposits with the fiscal agent uncollateralized.

The School Board had total deposits of $66,863,014 at Junc 30, 1998, $64,725,072 of this total was on deposit
with the fiscal agent and was comprised mostly of the School Board's main accounts. The remaining $2,137. 942
was on deposit at a total of six other arca banks and was comprised mainly of school activity funds.

Corrective action planned: The Caddo Parish School Board accounting department monitors collateral pledged
to cover deposits on a periodic basis. The deficiency 1n collaterahization reflecied on June 30, 1998, was covered
as ol July 1, 1998. The accounting department will continuc to work closely with our fiscal agent to cnsure that
deposits are fully collateralized at all times.

Person responsible for corrective action:

Mr. Ben Wreyford, Director of Finance Telcphone: (318) 632-6330
Caddo Parish School Board Fax: (318) 632-6331

P. O Box 32000

Shreveport, LA 71130-2000

Anticipated completion date: By June 30, 1999,
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Corrective Action Plan for Current-Year Findings and Questioned Cost
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 1998

Reference # and title: 98-F2 Fixed Asset Listing

Condition: Three items sclected from the School Board's comprehensive asset listing to be located at a school
could not be located while on site. Twelve items sclected while on site could not be traced back 1o the
comprchensive fixed assct listing.

Forty items were sclected to trace from the listing to the site. The three items not located while tracing from the
histing to the site represent 7.5% of those 40 assets selected. An additional 40 items were picked while on siic to
trace back to the listing. The 12 items selected to trace from the site to the listing represent 30% of those 40
sclected. 12.5% (five items) had similar or identical asset descriptions on the comprehensive listing, however, no
serial number was listed in order (o verify that the asscts were the same.  The School Board utilizes serial numbers
as a uniquc number for each asset for identification purposes. Another 7.5% (threc items) had assets with similar
descriptions on the comprehensive hsting, however, the assets listed were assigned sertal numbers which did not
match the serial numbers of the items picked on site. The remaining 10% (four items) had no asscts with a sumilar

description on the comprehensive listing. All twelve of the items appcear to be valued above the capitalization
threshold of the School Board.

Corrective action planned: Proper reporting by schools is the key to accurate fixed asset records. In the 1997-
1998 year, the accounting department attempted to reconcile records by submitting to each school a list of fixed
asscts on file and requesting that it be checked against asscts on site, with additions and deletions to be indicated.
It appcars that this process did not result in complete reporting of discarded 1items or additional items purchascd
by schools or outsidc organizations.

The accounting department is preparing for a second step to identify all fixed assets. We plan to meet with
principals to convey the urgency of accurate reporting. We will ask the principals to name a fixed asset contact
person at cach site and will work with that person to oblain accurale records.

We have requested that our internal auditing department include a review of fixed asset records 1n future school
audits. Also, we will begin a study of the feasibility of using bar code tags to 1dentify asscts.

Person re¢sponsible for corrective action:

Mr. Ben Wreyford, Dircctor of Finance Telephone: (318) 632-6330
Caddo Parish School Board Fax: (318) 632-633]

P. O. Box 32000

Shreveport, LA 71130-2000

Anticipated completion date: By Junc 30, 1999,

o ———
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Management Letter I1tems
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Management Letter

Board Members
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Loulsiana

[n planning and performing our audit of the general-purpose financial statements of the Caddo Parish School Board,
Shreveport, Louisiana, for the year ended June 30, 1998, we considered the School Board's internal control structure
to plan our auditing procedurcs for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the {inancial statements and not to provide
assurance on the intermal control structure.

However, during our audit, we noted certain matters involving the internal control structure and other operational matters
that arc presented for your consideration. This letter does not affect our report dated September 23, 1998, on the
financial statcments of the School Board. We will review the status of these comments during our next audit
engagement. Our comments and recommendations, all of which have been discussed with appropriate members of
management, are intended 1o improve the internal control structure or result in other operating efficiencies. We will be
pleased to discuss these comments in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of thesc matters,
or 1o assist you in implementing the recommendations. Our comments are summarized as follows:

98-M1 Student Activity Funds

Comment: According 10 the School Activity Funds: Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting handbook issued
by the Legislative Auditor, accountability for money reccived in a school "must be initiated when funds are first received
by a school employee. The principal or appropriate person should issue a pre-numbered (multi-copy) receipt for the
cxact amount of the funds received." Furthermore, "all bank balances must be reconciled with book balances on a
monthly basis. The completed reconciliation must be reviewed and signed by the principal. Any variances in the
balances must be investigated or explained.”

According to the Caddo Parish Public Schools School Activity Funds Accounting Manual, "a receipt must be written

for all funds received into the custody of the school's office. The receipt should be issued from a receipt book that is
a bound book of pre-numbered receipls.”

Also, "“all bank balances must be reconciled with book balances on a monthly basis, The completed reconciliation must
be reviewed and signed by the principal.  Any variances in the balances must be investigated or explained. Bank
statcments and canceled checks should be received by principals unopened, reviewed by the principal, and distributed
to the bookkeeper.”

17
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Board Mcmbers
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

A review of audits performed by the Caddo Parish School Board Internal Auditing Department yiclded the following

¢xceptions:
L. Two schools had cash or checks on hand for which no receipts had been prepared. Theses funds totaled
$674.03 and $2,011.24.
2. One school had a shortage of receipts covering the period July 1, 1995 through September 30, 1997, The

cstimated shortage totaled $63,787.96. The shortage was comprised mainly of funds receipted but not
deposited. In addition, the internal auditors stated that it appeared that the principal's name was signed by
somecone other than the principal on over 200 checks, many of which were made payable to the bookkeeper.

Audits performed by the Internal Auditing Department and reviewed by Allen, Green & Company, LLP, covered 15
schools of the 76 total schools in the parish system.

Recommendations: School personncl should follow Legislative Auditor and School Board requircments over
procedures for handling receipts of school accounts. In addition, while reviewing the bank stalements and bank
reconciliations each month the principal should review receipts and disbursements carcfully for any irregularitics n
individual items or trends and variances over time. It is very important to follow the requirement that the principal
receive the bank statements and canceled checks unopened and that the principal carefully review all items for any
unusual transactions.

Management's Response: Al school principals and bookkegpers have been tramed n the proper procedures for
handling receipts of school accounts. The "Student Activity Funds Accounting Manual" which we provide to all schools
docs require the signature of the appropriate club or organization sponsor on disbursements,

In addition, all principals are required to personally open the school's bank statement 1 order to review the canceled
checks, depostits and disbursements carefully each month.

98-M2 New Year 2000 Compliance Disclosures Required

Comment: The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) recently 1ssued Technical Bulletin No. 98-]
(TB No. 98-1). TB No. 98-1 will be effective for Caddo Parish School Board for next year, the {iscal year ending
Junc 30, 1999,

The School Board will be required to make disclosures about several aspects of the year 2000 compliance 1ssuc. These
disclosurcs will mclude:

a. Any significant amount of resources commitied (contracts outstanding) for purposes of making the School
Board's computer systems year 2000 comphant,

b. A gencral description of the year 2000 issue as related to the School Board including a description ol the
stages of work in progress or completed in regards to making the School Board's computer systems year
2000 compliant and any additional stages of work that will be necessary to make the computer system ycar

2000 compliant. GASB has defined scveral stages which will need (0 be examined including:

8



Board Members
Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Lowstana

* awarcness stage

. asscssment stage

. remediation stage

. validation/testing stage

The School Board may need to dedicate a significant amount of resources to this issue in order to comply with the new
disclosurc requircments.

Recommendations: The School Board should begin work immediately in order to ensure compliance with these new
requirements. Allen, Green & Company, LLP, will be happy to provide any assistance concerning interpretation of the
new requirements if needed.

Management's Response: At present the school system has completed the awarencss and asscssment stages of our
year 2000 analysss. The remediation and validation/testing stages have been in progress for approximately sixteen (16)
months. Our projected completion date 1s June 1999,

Included immediately following this letter is a Status of Prior Management Letter Items. This information has not been
audited by Allen, Green & Company, LLP, and no opinion is expressed. However, we did follow-up on prior
management letter items and performed procedures to assess the reasonableness of the Status of Prior Management
Letter Items prepared by the auditec, and we would report, as a current-ycar management letter istem when Allen, Green
& Company, LLP, concludes that the Status of Prior Management Letter Items materially misrepresents the status of
any prior management letter item.

Our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the financial statements and, therefore,
may not reveal all weaknesses in policies and procedures that may exist.

This report is intended for the information of the Board, management and federal awarding agencics and pass-through
entitics. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

/’4 Z/ﬁawf gﬂﬂ 7 437%”7 Lty

ALLEN, GREEN & COMPANY, LLP

Monroc, Loulstana
Sceptember 23, 1998
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Status of Prior Management Letter Items
June 30, 1998

Reference # and title: 97-1 Internal Audit Procedures Concerning Fixed Assets

Finding imtially reported: Fiscal yvear ended June 30, 1997,

Condition: An examination of internal audit reports concerning verification of the fixed assct listing indicated
some problems may exist with the listing,  Seven items, or ¢ighicen percent of the forty items sclected for
cxamunation, were not found. The audit reports seemed 1o indicate that the items had been scrapped but had not
been removed from the listing. This could possibly indicate that the listing does not accuralely reflect the fixed
asscts of the School Board.

Planned corrective action: The accounting and accounts payable department has submitted inventory listings
to sites and locations for the purposc of updating their inventories relative to addition, changes, deletions, and
retirements. Upon receipt, these listings are being used 10 update our records. We anticipate finalizing all data
in the very near future.

Reference # and title: 7-2 School Activity Funds

Finding initially reported: Fiscal year ended June 30, 1997,

Condition: An cxamination of a sample of school activity fund internal audit reports for the fiscal year ended
Junc 30, 1997 revealed two instances where school funds were unaccounted for. Audit conclusions scemed 1o
indicate that internal controls at these schools could be improved, which may have contributed to the problem.
In additior, because of the large number of schools, yearly audits of each school is not practical. Accordingly,
audits of some schools when performed may cover a time period of up to six to eight years. This means that when
some audits are performed, an enormous number of transactions have probably occurred. In some cases, the
personncl responsible for the bookkecping will no longer be employed by the school. This would increase the
difficulty of the audit and could allow weak internal controls to go unchecked.

The Internal Audit staff may want to revisit their practice of auditing transactions for all years since the last audit.
It may be more prudent to audit only the last year or two years of transactions at a school. If problems are
cncountered the audit could be extended backward to cover transactions for all years since the last audit. The
dollar amount of annual receipts or disbursements at each school should be considered if a change i1s made in the
current practice.

This suggested practice would permit the internal audit department to audit more schools annually.

Corrective actign taken: Unless something unforescen happens to greatly delay our present audit schedule, all
schools with multiple year audits will be audited during the current fiscal vear. This will mcan that by the 1999-
2000 fiscal year, we will have no school needing to be audited for more than onc year. This item is considered
resolved.
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Caddo Parish School Board
Shreveport, Louisiana

Status of Prior Management Letter Items

June 30, 1998

Reference # and title: 07-3 Transfers of Monies Between Funds

Finding initially reported: Fiscal year ended Junc 30, 1996.

Condition: As a routine matter the School Board transfers monics between funds. In most cases the bookkeeper
for the receiving fund is different from the bookkeeper for the disbursing fund. A review of the handling of the
accounting in both funds should be made in order to assure that the accounting is compatible. In other words, if .
onc fund bookkeeper treats the transfer as an operating transfer, the other bookkeeper must then treat the
lransaction as a transfer. If one bookkeeper treats the transaction as a reimbursement, the other bookkeeper must
trcat the transaction as a reimbursement. There were a few inconsistencies noted during the audit.

Budgcting practice should mirror the accounting for these transfers.

Corrective action taken: Transfers of monics between funds are being monitored by staff to determine if these
transactions are being handled properly. Periodic reports arc run to verify the correct recording of these
transactions. This item is considered resolved.

Reference # and title: 97-4 Fuel Monitoring

T ——

Finding initially reported: Fiscal year ended June 30, 1997,

Condition: Examination of the internal audit report concering fuel monitoring indicated there were some
difficulties reconciling fucl levels to fuel consumption. The report indicated that fucl requisition procedures may
not be followed in all cases, which could Icad to such discrepancies. Quarterly audits of this situation should be
conducted untii such time as a history of tolerable variance is achicved.

Corrective action taken: The Caddo Parish School system has replaced the fucl storage tanks at the Shreveport
and Vivian Garages. The fuel storage tank at the Warchouse will be replaced soon and will not be used until it is
replaced.

We arc using Fuelman, a new fuel management system. Fuclman, owns the fucl in our tanks. When the fuel is
pumped mto our buses we are charged and billed weekly. This is an automated fucl control system which gencratcs
weekly reports that identifics by vehicle and driver the quantity of fucl pumped. These reports reflect miles driven,
amount of fucl used and miles per gallon.

Exception reports which reflect discrepancics are also part of the weckly reports. This item is considered resolved.
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